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g8l Corporate Objective
HEEZ
To become the leading and most reputable

and reliable EMS (Electronics Manufacturing
Services) provider in Asia.
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Mission Statement

Sz /_\
EFEan
We contribute to the advancement of society by providing people with quality products and
employing advanced technology, with protecting the environment always in mind. We hire and
nurture professionals and, together, we march towards our goals in pace with time. Putting
customers first, we provide them with the best products and services, assuring win-win results.
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Financial Highlights
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OPERATING RESULTS K&

For the year ended 31 March BiZ = A=+—HItFE
Revenue Ygz%

Gross profit =& |

Operating profit 4 & % )

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 22 BIARHE R A A FEA V4 A

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents) R & F| —EA& (Bl)

Interim dividend, paid, per ordinary share (HK cents) &A% & A% 2 EARE 8. (1)
Final dividend, proposed, per ordinary share (HK cents) &A% & 3 A% 8 R R BAR 2. (&A1)
Special dividend, proposed, per ordinary share (HK cents) &% & @A #ER RIS (GEAl)

FINANCIAL POSITION Ef %5k 5

As at 31 March A=A =+—H

Total equity #4858

Net current assets i 8) & &/ FE

Net cash 38 & /F %8

Capital expenditure & 2B 5%

Net assets value per share (HK cents) B EERE (B{L)

FINANCIAL RATIOS 8f 3Lt &

Current ratio R B)LL &

Debt to equity ratio B &L X
Inventory turnover days 17 & 188 H £1
Debtors turnover days J& U Bk Z A & H £1
Return on average equity F¥9AE 2R [B] 37 &
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2011
HK$'000
—E——F

TR

1,191,058
162,518
101,816

90,438
33.51
5.0

8.0

8.0

401,958
287,551
114,895
18,078
147.9

2.44
11.5%
49

36
24.7%

2010

HK$'000
—ET-TF

TET

959,866
127,015
63,407
56,505
21.76*
3.6%
5.9%

330,608
245,831
92,818
56,660
123.9%

2.57
10.5%
54

36
18.4%

*

As restated after taking into account the effect of the Bonus Issue in
September 2010
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Financial Highlights
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REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE Uk # ¥ 2 m 38 5l 2 4T

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLFE

Electronic products & 2 54
Moulds and plastic products & EL X ¥8 BB 2 &

Total 485t

2011 2010 % Change
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB——F —ZE-ZF gEFEH
FTHERT THBTT
1,137,249 917,638 23.93%
53,809 42,228 27.42%
1,191,058 959,866 24.09%

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT Uz 1z it & 7 #7

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLFE

The United States of America 32

United Kingdom ZE 5

Japan B 7K

PRC (including Hong Kong) A B (B 5 &)
Australia &M

Others E fih

Total 4851

2011 2010 % Change
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB——F —E-ZF gEFEH
FTHERT THBTT
419,438 263,358 59.27%
286,001 305,043 -6.24%
209,312 197,906 5.76%
96,495 48,060 100.78%
94,258 116,951 -19.40%
85,554 28,548 199.68%
1,191,058 959,866 24.09%

2011 B ™

4.5% Moulds and plastic products
RARERBER

95.5% Electronic products
BEFEmM

201 1 REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT
I 22 1R 3t & 55 A

8.10% PRC (including Hong Kong)
HE(RERE)

7.91% Australia
M

17.58% Japan
A

7.18% Others
H

% United Kingdom
35.22% The Unit: R
B
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results
of SUGA International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“SUGA” or the “Group”) for the fiscal year ended 31
March 2011 (“FY2010/11").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2011 marks the 20th anniversary of SUGA, | take particular pleasure
in reporting that the Group achieved record turnover and net profit in
the latest reporting period, which also underscores the effectiveness
of management’s business strategies. For the year ended 31 March
2011, the Group recorded turnover of approximately HK$1,191.1
million, up 24.1% from HK$959.9 million achieved last year. This
was the result of general market improvements and placement
of new orders from our clients. Gross profit reached HK$162.5
million (FY2009/10: HK$127.0 million) and gross profit margin was
13.6% (FY2009/10: 13.2%). The Group realized profit attributable
to shareholders of HK$90.4 million — 60.1% higher than last year's
HK$56.5 million — the upshot of efforts at streamlining operations
and successfully controlling costs. Net profit margin increased to
7.6% (FY2009/10: 5.9%) and basic earnings per share was HK33.51
cents (FY2009/10: HK21.76 cents, as restated)

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK8.0 cents per ordinary share (FY2009/10: HK6.5 cents per ordinary
share (HK5.9 cents per ordinary share, as restated after taking
into account the effect of the Bonus Issue in September 2010)). To
celebrate SUGA's 20th anniversary as well as reward shareholders
for their ongoing support, a special dividend of HK8.0 cents per
share (FY2009/10: Nil) will be issued to those whose names appear
on the Register of Shareholders of the Company on 12 August 2011.
Together with an interim dividend of HK5.0 cents per share already
paid, the total dividend for the year will amount to HK21.0 cents per
share (FY2009/10: HK9.5 cents per share, as restated). Subject to
approval by shareholders at the 2011 Annual General Meeting, the
proposed final dividend and special dividend are to be paid on or
before 19 August 2011.
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Chairman'’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Electronic Products

The electronic products segment consists of specialized electronic
products such as pet training devices, professional audio equipment,
auto-fare collection systems, interactive educational products,
general consumer electronic products and other electronic products.
For the reporting year, this segment generated sales of HK$1,137.2
million, up 23.9% from HK$917.6 million recorded last year,
accounting for 95.5% of the Group’s total sales.

Revenue from pet training devices grew by more than 36.0% when
compared with last year as our pet training partner continued
to replenish inventory. During the year, we explored new areas
of cooperation with this long-standing partner and have been
implementing a new strategy over the past few months that started
to bear fruit.

With regards to professional audio equipment, revenue more than
doubled owing to the patronage of new clients. Such strong revenue
growth is also indicative of the appreciation and recognition of our
quality products from important market players. Though the base
of this business is still relatively small, the growth potential is
enormous; hence we will continue bolstering our associated business
team to better support an anticipated increase in client numbers.

Turning attention to the general consumer electronic products
business, here too we were able to record strong growth mainly due
to the launch of a new telecommunications product for a renowned
Japanese client. This new product was sold primarily in Europe and
the US, where it was well-received by end-users.

Though our auto-fare collection system business experienced a
decline in revenue in the first half of the fiscal year due to a shortage
of some electronic components, sales picked up in the second half
year after the situation was rectified. As momentum returned,
we were able to achieve full-year sales comparable with the last
corresponding year.
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Looking at our interactive educational products, such products
continued to provide a steady stream of income to the Group. Having
maintained close ties with our business partners, we were able to
nurture such relations, growing with them as both benefited from a
flourishing market where interactive education is set to be the future
teaching trend.

Moulds and Plastic Products

Sales derived from moulds and plastic products increased by 27.4%
to HK$53.8 million, accounting for 4.5% of the Group's total sales.
We will continue efforts to raise efficiency with the objective of
maintaining a reasonable margin level for this segment.

Accreditation

Having made solid steps forward during the year, we were most
grateful to receive recognition from the industry and investment
community, proving that SUGA’s achievements were indeed noticed
and respected. In particular, we placed first in the “Best Small-Cap”
company (Hong Kong) category of “Asia’s Best Managed Companies
Poll”, conducted by the authoritative Asia Pacific financial magazine,
FinanceAsia. This represented the third consecutive year that SUGA
has been bestowed with this honor.

We are extremely pleased to be recognized together with Asia’s
premier companies during this particularly meaningful period in
our history. Being selected once again reflects the recognition and
trust that the investment community has towards SUGA's shrewd
strategies and innovative spirit, which has been the backbone of our
success over the past two decades.

Environmental Protection and Corporate Social
Responsibility

While seeking to be an industry leader, we have not shirked from
our responsibility to society and the environment. In giving back to
society, we took part in several activities over the past 12 months,
including visiting an elderly center in Kai Yip Estate during the
Lunar New Year and participation in an orienteering competition
organized by CLP Power and DAWN Hong Kong, aimed at raising
funds for educating teenagers about the dangers of narcotics. We
were also involved in Walk for Sight 2011, organized by ORBIS Hong
Kong, where donations were raised toward blindness prevention and
treatment in China.
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Chairman'’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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On the environmental front, we have now participated in the Green
Power Hike for ten consecutive years and took part in the “Cleaner
Production Partnership Program” organized by Hong Kong Productivity
Council ("HKPC"), which led to the adoption of energy conservation
measures at our Buji and Huizhou manufacturing plants. We also
entered the ISO 50001 Pilot Program organized by HKPC, which will
bolster our ability to introduce a new ISO 50001 Energy Management
System.

To raise awareness and involvement in environmental protection
among our staff and their families, we were involved in such
worthwhile efforts as “International Coastal Cleanup 2010” initiated
by Ocean Conservancy and “Greening Hong Kong by PolyU Alumni
2010, also serving as Gold Sponsor in the latter event.

PROSPECTS

The Group's 20th anniversary is not only a time to reflect on our
past, it is a time to take stock of developments and plan for the
future. With this in mind, we will utilize our existing businesses as
springboard for reaching new heights, exploring fresh opportunities
amid a recovering global economy.

In the year ahead, most of our existing products are expected to
continue making progress. While the Group’s professional audio
equipment is anticipated to realize greater sales, contributions from
new telecommunications products will for the first time be reflected
in a full calendar year, and is likely to be another growth driver for
SUGA. Since production of auto-fare collection systems has returned
to normal, sales of such devices will continue to climb as well. What
is more, our pet training devices and interactive educational products
are also projected to deliver stable performances in the coming year.
The organic growth of all our established businesses will thus help
to further consolidate the Group's lead position as EMS provider of
specialized electronic products.
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While fortifying its position in the EMS industry, the Group will also
actively look for fresh opportunities within niche segments. A perfect
example is the renewable energy segment which has attracted
growing attention, especially following the highly publicized nuclear
crisis in Japan. SUGA has secured new orders for the manufacture
of solar inverters, which target both the commercial and public
consumer markets, and contributions from this new business are
forecasted to become more significant in the coming year.

In addition to our manufacturing activities, we will seek to expand
our business horizons by tapping into China’s pet retail market. The
potential of the local pet industry is enormous since research has
indicated that such markets usually expand markedly once median
household income reaches a key level. We believe that such a level
is being reached; hence, capitalizing on SUGA's experience and
knowledge of China, as well as expertise in the pet-related market,
which spans more than a decade, the Group established three pet
stores in Shenzhen under the “Losun” brand name. In addition to
selling products from our pet training devices partner, the stores
carry peripheral products and services. With initial market response
being positive, the management will continue to carefully monitor
the market and expand the sales network, though initially within
Guangdong Province.

Currently, the Group’s solid financial position is enhanced with
an abundant cash balance of more than HK$161.1 million and
considerable banking facilities at its disposal. SUGA will actively
seek acquisition opportunities to boost the expansion of its business
and thereby maximise return to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to extend my appreciation to
our highly committed management team and staff. | would also
wish to offer my gratitude to the Group’s partners, customers and
shareholders for their unwavering support. As SUGA commences its
journey toward another two decades of expansion | will certainly look
forward to participating in this voyage every step of the way.

Ng Chi Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2011
approximately HK$1,191.1 million, representing an increase of 24.1%
as compared to that of last year. The increase was mainly due to the
general market improvements and the patronage of new customers.

was

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
that are used to make strategic decisions by the Group senior
management. The Group senior management considers the Group
business mainly from product perspective, and the products of the
Group are mainly divided into electronic products and moulds and
plastic products.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, sales of electronic products
increased by 23.9% to HK$1,137.2 million (2010: HK$917.6 million).
The electronic products segment covers specialized electronic
products, general consumer electronic products and other electronic
products. The increase in sales of this segment was mainly
attributable to growth in sales of pet training devices, professional
audio equipment and general consumer electronic products.

As for moulds and plastic products, revenue increased by 27.4%
to HK$53.8 million (2010: HK$42.2 million). The increase was
attributable by placement of new orders from our existing customers
and new customers.

Geographically, for the year ended 31 March 2011,
generated from the top 3 countries, the United States of America, the
United Kingdom and Japan, accounting for 76.8% of the Group's total
sales (2010: 79.8%).

revenue

BB R R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R RO

Profit Attributable to Equity holders of the Company

Gross profit for the year increased by 28.0% to HK$162.5 million
(2010: HK$127.0 million) and gross profit margin was improved from
13.2% to 13.6%. The increase in sales and rise in gross profit margin
contribute for the increase in gross profit. The improvement in the
gross profit margin was the result of Group’s continued effort to
streamline operations, enhance production efficiency and focusing
on specialized electronic products with higher margin. This has also
offset the adverse effect of rise in labour cost, increase in materials
cost and appreciation in Renminbi encountered by us during the year.

Operating profit was HK$101.8 million, compared with HK$63.4
million last year, an increased of 60.6%. The increase in operating
profit was primarily attributable by the increase in gross profit. As
for the distribution, selling, general and administrative expenses,
despite the sales increased by 24.1%, we can still maintain these
expenses at about the same level as last year. This also proved our
effectiveness in costs control.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group has achieved a net
finance income of HK$0.6 million from net finance cost of HK$0.2
million last year. The increase was resulted from income received
from long-term investments acquired during the year and several
short-term yield enhancement deposits.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company increased to HK$90.4 million from
HK$56.5 million last year, representing an increase of 60.1%.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has current assets of HK$487.6
million and current liabilities of HK$200.0 million. The current ratio
was 2.44 (31 March 2010: 2.57).

Bank borrowings were HK$46.3 million as at 31 March 2011 (31
March 2010: HK$34.6 million). The increase in bank borrowings was
mainly due to refreshment of a long-term bank loan during the year.
Gearing ratio (calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by total
equity) was 11.5% (31 March 2010: 10.5%) The Group maintained a
net cash balance of HK$114.9 million as at the balance sheet date
(31 March 2010: HK$92.8 million).

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$389.1 million (31 March 2010: HK$432.3 million)
from its principal bankers for overdrafts, loans and trade financing,
with unused facilities of HK$321.7 million (31 March 2010: HK$393.3
million).

The Group generally finances its operations by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong. Banking facilities used by the Group include revolving
loans, trust receipt loans, overdrafts, leasing and term loans, which
are primarily on floating interest rates hasis.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's total capital expenditures for the year under review were
HK$18.1 million. The capital expenditures is mainly for the purchase
of machineries and equipments for production plants in Mainland
China.
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BB R RO

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's transaction and monetary assets are principally
dominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
The Group has not experienced any difficulties or effects on its
operations or liquidity as a result of the fluctuations in currency
exchange rates during the year ended 31 March 2011.

During the year, the Group had entered into several foreign exchange
contracts to hedge the currency translation risk of Renminbi against
United States dollars. All these foreign exchange contracts were for
hedging purpose and it is the policy of the Group not to enter into any
derivative contracts purely for speculative activities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had pledged its office premise
located at 22nd floor, tower B, Billion Centre, Kowloon Bay together
with 4 car parking spaces to secure a bank mortgage loan of HK$26.2
million for financing the acquisition of the office premise and car
parking spaces. Other than the said mortgage loan, the Group had
not pledged any of its assets (31 March 2010: HK$28.9 million) as
securities for the banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had no outstanding capital
commitment (31 March 2010: Nil). Corporate guarantees given to
banks to secure the borrowings granted to subsidiaries as at 31
March 2011 amounted to HK$67.4 million (31 March 2010: HK$39.0
million) and the Group did not have any significant contingent
liability.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011 the Group employed 2,041 employees, of
which 48 were based in Hong Kong and Macao while the rest were
mainly in Mainland China. Remuneration policy is reviewed regularly,
making reference to current legislation, market condition and both
the individual and company performance. In addition to salaries and
other usual benefits like annual leave, medical insurance and various
mandatory pension schemes, the Group also provides educational
sponsorship subsidies, discretionary performance bonus and share
options. A share option scheme was adopted on 17 September
2002 which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the
adoption date, detailed of which are specified in the Section “Share
Option Scheme” on page 38 of this annual report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. NG Chi Ho, aged 61, is the founder, chairman and managing
director of the Group. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy, strategic planning and development, and overall
management of the Group. Dr. Ng has over 34 years of management
experience in the electronics industry and had been a lecturer in
electronic engineering at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University for
4 years. Dr. Ng holds a bachelor degree in science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a master of philosophy degree in computer
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, and an honorary
doctor of engineering degree from Lincoln University, USA. Dr. Ng
is a chartered engineer, a fellow of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, UK, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and an honorary fellow of the Canadian Chartered Institute of
Business Administration. In addition, Dr Ng is a general committee
member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, chairman of
Hong Kong Electronics Industries Council, vice chairman of Hong
Kong Electronic Industries Association, and vice president of Hong
Kong Semiconductor Industry Council. He is also a member of the
advisory committee of Electronic and Electrical Industries of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council, as well as member of the advisory
committee of the Electronic and Information Engineering Department
of Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. MA Fung On, aged 53, is the deputy chairman of the Group.
Mr. Ma is responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall
strategic planning and policies, as well as overseeing the personnel,
administration and logistics of the Group. Mr. Ma has worked
with the Group for more than 18 years and has over 29 years of
experience in the electronics industry. He graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in electronic
engineering.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kam Hung, aged 53, is a non-executive director of
the Group. He holds a master degree in engineering business
management from the University of Warwick in the UK. Mr. Lee
is now the founder, chairman and technical director of Hong Kong
Automotive X'tals Limited and its group companies. In addition, Mr.
Lee is the vice president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council,
director of Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry Association and executive
committee member of Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council. He
is also an advisory committee member on Department of Applied
Physics and honorary life director of PolyU Development Foundation
of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Professor WONG Sook Leung, Joshua, aged 72, is an
independent non-executive director of the Group. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Group. Prof. Wong is presently the
Professor Emeritus of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
has over 34 years of working experience with tertiary educational
institutions including 28 years with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University of which 6 years as the vice president, 2 years as the
senior consultant, 10 years as chair professor in electronic and
information engineering department and 16 years as the head
of electronic engineering department. Prior to joining the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, he was an associate professor of
California State University at Los Angeles, US from 1968 to 1974.
In addition, he was the president of the Hong Kong Association for
the Advancement of Science and Technology in 1988/89. Prof. Wong
is currently president of the Hong Kong Semiconductor Industries
Council. Prof. Wong obtained his bachelor of engineering degree
from the University of Hong Kong and his doctor of philosophy degree
from Leeds University, UK. He is also a chartered engineer, a fellow
member of the Institution of Engineering and Technology, UK and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
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Mr. LEUNG Yu Ming, Steven, aged 52, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group and a member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Group.
Mr. Leung holds a master degree in accounting from Charles Sturt
University in Australia and a bachelor degree in social science from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Leung is an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, a practising certified accountant of CPA Australia
and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong respectively. Mr. Leung is
also a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung
previously worked in Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited as an
assistant vice president in the International Finance and Corporate
Finance Department. He commenced public practice in auditing and
taxation since 1990. He is now the senior partner of a certified public
accountants firm. Mr. Leung has over 26 years of experience in
assurance, accounting, taxation, financial management and corporate
finance. Mr. Leung is also an independent non-executive director of C
C Land Holdings Limited, The Cross Harbour (Holdings) Limited, Y.T.
Realty Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which
are companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Kit Wang, aged 58, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group and a member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Group. Mr.
Chan graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1977
with a higher diploma in accountancy. Mr. Chan is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
He is now a senior partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr.
Chan has over 34 years of working experience in accounting, auditing
and taxation.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, aged 54, is the chief financial officer
of the Group. Mr. Lee is responsible for overseeing the corporate
and financial matters of the Group. Mr. Lee is a practising certified
public accountant in Hong Kong. He is also an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lee joined the Group in early 2005 and has over 31 years of
experience in corporate finance, accounting and auditing. Before
joining the Group, he worked for a blue chip listed company in
Hong Kong for over 17 years in a senior executive position. Mr. Lee
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher
diploma in accountancy. He is the brother-in-law of Dr. Ng Chi Ho,
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Group.

Mr. WONG Wai Lik, Lamson, aged 47, is the general manager
of moulds and plastic products division and is responsible for
overseeing the operations of Huizhou plant. Mr. Wong graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in
production and industrial engineering. He joined the Group in 1992
and has over 24 years of experience in production operations and
supervision.

Ms. WONG Sin, Kathy, aged 41, is the general manager of
electronic manufacturing service (“EMS”) division of the Group in
Xixiang plant and is responsible for overseeing the operations of
the factory. Ms. Wong holds an EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University, China. She joined the Group in 2002 and has over 18 years
of experience in the electronics manufacturing industry.
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Mr. TENG Boon Han, Eric, aged 33, is the general manager
of EMS and pet training products divisions and is responsible for
the overall operations including programme management, order
management, supply chain management, product development and
manufacturing in Buji plant. Mr. Teng holds a bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Finance and Economics from University of
New Brunswick, Canada. He joined the Group in 2007. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Teng worked for global IT and telecommunication
companies. He has had international working exposure in the USA,
Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand within those companies.

Mr. MAO Jian Quan, aged 40, is the general manager of the
EMS division in Buji plant. Mr. Mao holds a Bachelor of Engineering
degree from the Shanxi Institute of Mechanical Engineering in China.
He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 17 years of experience in
the electronic manufacturing industry.

Mr. FUNG Chi Leung, Mark, aged 47, is the general manager of
the marketing division in Buji plant. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Fung has over
24 years of working experience in electronics sales and marketing.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices as set
out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practice (the “ CG Code”) in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Company has
complied with the CG Code except CG Code A.2.1 in respect of the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

CG Code A2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Up to the date of this report, the Group does
not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Dr.
Ng Chi Ho currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of long-term business strategies.
Going forward, the Group will periodically review the effectiveness
of this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as Chief
Executive Officer when it thinks appropriate.

Save the abovementioned deviation, none of the directors of the
Company is aware of information that would reasonably indicate the
Company is not or was not in compliance with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code for the year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group's overall management is vested in its board of directors,
which now comprises six members, coming from diverse businesses
and professional backgrounds. The Board consisted of two executive
directors, Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman), Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy
Chairman), one non-executive director, Mr. Lee Kam Hung and three
independent non-executive directors ('INED’), Professor Wong Sook
Leung, Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven and Mr. Chan Kit Wang
(collectively the ‘Directors’). There is no financial, business or family
relationship between the Directors. The principal functions of the
Board are to supervise the group’s business and affairs; to review
the Group’s financial performance; to review the Group’s systems
of internal control; to approve the strategic plans, investment and
funding decision. For the financial reporting accountability, the Board
has the ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial statements.
The day-to-day management is conducted by senior management and
employees of the Group, under the direction and supervision of the
Directors. When the Directors are aware of any events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, such events or conditions will be clearly set out
and discussed in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs among
whom one has to have appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting of related finance management expertise. The role of
INED is to bring an independent and objective view to the Board's
deliberations and decisions. The Company has received from each
of the INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
INEDs are independent.

All non-executive directors (including INEDs) shall have a fixed
tenure and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies. The Board is supplied
with relevant information by the senior management pertaining
to matters to be brought before the Board for decision as well as
reports relating to operational and financial performance of the
Group before each regular board meeting. At least 14 days notice
of a regular board meeting is given to all directors to give them the
opportunity to attend. Board papers are dispatched to the directors
at least three days before the meeting to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for
the meeting.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal controls of
the Company and its subsidiaries, setting appropriate policies
and reviewing the effectiveness of such controls. Internal control
is defined as a process effected by the Board, management and
other personnel, designed to manage rather then eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, not absolute assurance of the following:

effectiveness and efficiency operations

reliability of financial reporting

— compliance with applicable laws and regulations

effectiveness of risk management functions

The Board conducted a review of the system of internal controls
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March
2011 including the consideration of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function and their training programmes and
budget. The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control by
considering reviews performed by the Audit Committee, executive
management and the independent auditors’ management letters, if
any, and is satisfied that the system of internal control of the Group
is functioning properly.
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The attendance record of the Board meeting during the year is as
follow:

Number of meetings

BERE

Name of directors

Exps

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) RextEtL(FE)
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) BETEE(FFE)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung IR A

Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua L= PRk 65

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHILE

Mr. Chan Kit Wang RN A&

DIRECTORS" AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the
executive of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the
Company has arrange insurance cover for this purpose.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Group's independent auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC").
The financial reporting responsibilities of the independent auditors
are set out on page 53 to 54 of this annual report.

During the year, remuneration of approximately HK$1,985,000 was
payable to PwC for the provision of audit services. In addition,
approximately HK$299,400 was payable to PwC for other non-audit
services. The non-audit services mainly consist of tax compliance and
other services.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua. The
meetings of the Audit Committee are held not less than twice a
year to review the internal control systems of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and also review and discuss the Group’s interim and
annual financial statements. Additional meetings may also be held by
the Committee from time to time to discuss special projects or other
issues of which the Audit Committee considers necessary.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

To consider the appointment of the independent auditors, the
audit fee, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of the
independent auditors;

To discuss with the independent auditors the nature and scope
of the audit;

To review the half-year and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any matters the independent
auditors may wish to discuss;

To review the independent auditors’ management letter and the
management’s response;

To discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget;

To consider the major findings of any internal investigation and
the management'’s response;

To consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.
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The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings during the
year is as follows:

Number of meeting

BERE

Member of Audit Committee

ERZEEEBRE

Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua ER=ErE 6l
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFEEAE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRARREE

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the fiscal year
2009/2010 annual report and fiscal year 2010/2011 interim report,
reviewed and discussed the financial results and internal control
systems of the group, conducted discussions with the independent
auditors on financial reporting, compliance, and reported all relevant
matters to the Board.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the fiscal year 2010/2011
annual report in a meeting held on 17 June 2011.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs and is currently
chaired by Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua. No director or senior
executive will be involved in any discussion in connection with his or
her own remuneration. The meeting of the Remuneration Committee
shall normally be held not less than once a year.

The Committee’s principal responsibilities are reviewing
remuneration packages of directors and senior management
and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
structure. It also reviews and guides the formulation of the Group's
performance related pay schemes. Term of reference which described
the authorities and duties of the Remuneration Committee was
adopted by the Board on August 2005 and the contents of which are
in compliance with the Code Provisions of the CG Code.
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The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting
during the year is as follow:

Number of meeting

2R

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FMZEEERE

Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua HELARK
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFEHESE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang RN S

During the year the Remuneration Committee reviewed the director’s
fees of all current non-executive Directors and INEDs, and the
remuneration of all current executive Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs and is currently
chaired by Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua. The meeting of the
Nomination Committee shall normally be held not less than once
a year. The Committee will identify qualified candidates to fill the
Board membership whenever such vacancy arises. It will nominate
such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly review the
composition of the Board as well as make suggestions as to any
change that may be required.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting is as
follow:

Number of meeting

=8

Member of the Nomination Committee

REZEERE

Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua HERo AR
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFEAE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR S
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group made specific enquiry of all directors as to whether
they complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code (Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules) regarding their securities
transactions. It was confirmed that there was full compliance. The
relevant employee who, because of their office in the Group, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information,
have been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model
Code.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. In order to develop and maintain
continuing relationship with the shareholders of the Company, the
Company established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for the
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board,

(i) the company makes sure its website www.suga.com.hk contains
the most current information, including annual reports, interim
reports, announcements and press releases,

(iii) the management of the Group continually conducts meetings
with investors, analysts and the media, and provides them
with up-to-date and comprehensive information regarding the
Company’s development and answers to their queries.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to the amendments to the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the general meeting of the Company must be taken
by poll with effect from 1 January 2009. The Company will ensure
that shareholders are familiar with the procedures of voting by poll
in all the general meetings of the Company. The results of the poll
are published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of electronic products, moulds and plastic
products. Details of the principal activities of the Group's
subsidiaries are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by reporting
and geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 57 of this annual
report.

An interim dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share was paid
during the year. The Directors have proposed the payment of a final
dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend of
HK8.0 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2011.
Total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2011 amounted to HK21.0
cents per ordinary share. The proposed final dividend and special
dividend, if approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held on 8 August 2011 is expected to be paid
on or before 19 August 2011 to shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the Register of Shareholders of the Company on
12 August 2011, and for the purpose of determining the entitlements
of the shareholders to receive the above mentioned dividends, the
register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed on 12 August
2011, on which day no transfer of shares will be registered.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of
the Company during the year are set out in notes 23 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2011
calculated under Company Act of Bermuda amounted to
HK$113,767,000 (2010: HK$83,419,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$249,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particular of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2011 are set out in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 164 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven

Mr. Chan Kit Wang

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Ma Fung On and Mr.
Chan Kit Wang will retire by rotation in accordance with Bye-law
111 of the Company’s Bye-laws. All the retiring directors, are being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors is appointed for a term of one year.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

Dr. Ng Chi Ho, being executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 September 2002 and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Ma Fung On, an
executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 1
April 2004 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Save as disclosed above, none of the directors proposed for
re-election has a service contract with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme adopted on 17 September
2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”), under which it may grant options
to eligible participants (including Directors of the Company) to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

Principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Directors
consider the Share Option Scheme, with its broadened basis of
participation, will enable the Group to reward the employees,
Directors and other selected participants for their contributions
to the Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment
and retention of high caliber professionals, executives and
employees who are instrumental to the growth of the Group.

Annual Report 2010/115

EERESERBSHN @)

RARMITESRARBELHART G LR
G BZEEZFAA—BEFAVFEER
HE=F HGe#H EBHEE BEEFW—FH
HAHBHA PR =ZEAZERBANKIEAL -
HITEEFELRAERARR I URBEEL
—ZZNFNA—HREFVSEETHAE=
FoHRE—EEE BEEAMN—FRYEFHE
BRI R=ZEAZEABAKIEALE B EX
BEEIN BEEFHRAQAEEANEERR
AIREINBECEEBERIN ABR—
FARIEZREEH -

BRREE
ARBR_TZ-_FNA T ARABEE
gl (TRt El)) - Bt - ARRAAARER
2EE (BRARAESR) REBEE - URE
ZAYNCT) il

AR S 2 BT

1. BRESEZEN

BERERE BN EASEAE TS HE
ERBBRE  ERSHAREZERIE
HHBHEE - EXZRA - BREAEZ
SEREENE  AIEAKENRER EF
FREMEF2EESNEER 2 BEREL R
B I ADARERE LSRR A S
BRERIZEXAT TTHABREE -



Annual Report 2010/115 %

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity interest,
including any executive director of the Company, any of
such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, and of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to business
operations or business arrangements of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

3.

Total number of Share available for issue

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not exceed
10% of the issue share capital of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 25,979,000 shares (including 1,485,000 shares subject to
options that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
which represented 9.55% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of share issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being
(“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of
the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant must be subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such participant and his or her
associates abstaining from voting.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital in issue for the time being and with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved by shareholders of the
Company.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date
of the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

6.

Exercise period of an option

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
period may commence from the date upon which the offer for
the grant of the option is accepted but shall end on any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the grant of
the option.

Time and payment on acceptance

An option must be accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer of the grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Minimum period and performance targets

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in the
offer of the grant of options to a grantee, a grantee is not
required to hold an option for any minimum period nor achieve
any performance targets before any options granted under the
Share Qption Scheme can be exercised.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
till 16 September 2012. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

9.

(Continued)

Details of the share option movements during the period from
1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011 under the Share Option Scheme

are as follows:

BREE (7
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9. BRESIZNBRFHE)

M- TEMA-HE-T——%=f
=+ B - B &R T 2 BRE

EHHEOT

Number of share options
BRESA

Outstanding  Outstanding Qutstanding

Outstanding Exercised  immediately  immediately  Exercised at

at 1 April hefore hefore after after 31 March

010 Granted  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment il

RZZ-ZF  duringthe date RER RE# date RZF--% Exercise Date
mA-A period  HEERH  HEAY  BEAH  WHEERE ZA=1-8 price of grant Exercisable Period
WAGE  BREE  HEAE  AHATE  4EAGRE AEAR HAOR kR RELAS i
(Note 1) (HKS)
(Bsn) (B7)

Professor Wong Sook Leung, 400,000 - 200,000 200,000 0.750 4 August 4 August 2009 -
Joshua (Note 2) 2009 3 August 2014
BRRUE (Rzt0) ZEEIng “ERNENAMRE
NAmA Z5-BENAZR
220,000 - 220,000 0,662 4 August 4 ugust 2009 -
(Note 3) 2009 3 August 2014
(W) —E3NE “ERNENAMRE
NAmA Z5-BENAZR
. Leung Yu Ming, 300,000 - - 300,000 0750 4 August 4 August 2009 -
Steven 2009 3 August 2014
PSS ik ZEEIng “ERNENAMRE
NAmA Z5-BENAZR
330,000 330,000 - 0,662 4 August 4 ugust 2009 -
(Note 4) (Note 3) 2009 3 August 2014
GiR) (W) —E3NE “ERNENAMRE
NAmA Z5-BENAZR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BARESTE (&)
9. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme 9. BRETE2FERER &)
(Continued)
Number of share options
RHEHA

Qutstanding  Outstanding Qutstanding

Outstanding Exercised  immediately  immediately  Exercised at

at 1 April hefore before alter after 3 March

2010 Granted  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment adjustment M

RZF-FF  during the date REE REE date RZF--% Exercise Date
mA-A perod  RBERH  HERE  BEAH WEERE ZA=1-A price of grant Exercisable Period
AR BREL  HEAR  AHATE  4EAGRE  4EFE HAGR fikE  REAE ik
(Note 1) (HKS)
(Rtzt) (#7)

Continuous contract 2,820,000 - 2720000 100,000 0.750 4 August 4 August 2009 -
employees Note 5) 2009 3 August 2014
KERDES 55 ZEDNE ZERNENAMAE
NAmA ZR-RENAZR
110,000 110,000 - 0682 4 August 4 August 2009 -
(Note B) (Note 3) 2009 3 August 2014
(Bizts) UG ———F ZERNENAMAE
NAmA ZR-RENAZR
- 1,300,000 330,000 970,000 1464 29 April 29 April 2010 -
(Note 6) (Note 7) 010 28 April 201
(Bzx) (&) Z5-%F  CB-ZEMACTARE
BAZtNE  ZE-RFEA-TAR
1,067,000 97,000 110,000 1331 29 April 29 April 2010 -
(Note 7) (Note 3) 010 28 April 201
(B&7) (W&3)  —5-BF Z—E-SEMA-TARE
BAZtNE  ZE-RFEA-TAR
- 950,000 - 950,000 1.260 3 June 31 December 2013 -
(Note 8) 2010 3 June 2015
GiE2) Z3-3F ZE-EtCfCt-BE
nAZA “F-145A=R
1,045,000 - 1,045,000 1145 3 June 31 December 2013 -
(Note 3) 010 3 June 2015
(3) -—E-TF “Z-ZE+-F1-HE
nAZA “F-145A=R
Others 300,000 - - 300,000 0750 4 August 4 August 2009 -
ity 2009 3 August 2014
“2ENE ZEENE\ARAE
NAmA ZR-RENAZR
330,000 - 330,000 0682 4 August 4 August 2009 -
(Note 3) 2009 3 August 2014
UG ———F ZERNENAMAE
NAmA ZR-RENAZR

3820000 2,250,000 3,250,000 2800000 3,102,000 1,397,000 1,705,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

9.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

(Continued)
Notes:

As a result of the bonus issue of shares on 10 September 2010,
adjustments have been made to the outstanding share options
of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company.

During the financial year, the weighted average closing price of
the Company’s share immediately before the date (21 July 2010),
on which 200,000 share options were exercised was HK$1.585*.

Adjusted exercise price per share immediately after adjustment.

During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company's share immediately before the date (4 March
2011), on which 330,000 share options were exercised was
HK$2.476*.

During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company’s share immediately before the date, on which
2,720,000 and 110,000 share options were exercised was
HK$1.436*.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the
date (29 April 2010) on which the share options were granted,
was HK$1.331%.

During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company's share immediately before the date, on
which 330,000 and 957,000 share options were exercised was
HK$2.091*.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the
date (3 June 2010) on which the share options were granted, was
HK$1.145*.

As adjusted after taking into account the effect of the Bonus
Issue in September 2010.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRREE (2)
9. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme 9. BRETEZRGRFERE)
(Continued)
Details of the share option movements during the period from 1 H-_ZE——FNA—HE-_Z—F"A
April 2011 to 22 June 2011 under the Share Option Scheme are “TZHERE - BRETEETEREZ
as follows: EHFBEOT
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 April at 22 June
2011 Granted Exercised Lapsed M
W=Z-—% duringthe duringthe duringthe R=F——F Exercise
A-H period period period KAAZTZH  price  Date of grant Exercisable period
HATHE HARE HBaTR BRER HATE TRE R A okid
(HKS)
(&7
Professor Wong Sook Leung, 220,000 - 220,000 - - 0682 4August 2009 4 August 2009 -
Joshua (Note 1) “EENE 3 August 2014
EERAR (R3E1) NATA ZZENE/\ANAZE
“E-mENAZH
Continuous contract 110,000 - - 110000 1331 4 August 2009 4 August 2009 -
Employees “EENE 3 August 2014
RESH NATA ZZENE/\ANAZE
EE “E-mENAZH
1,045,000 - - - 1045000 1.145 3 June 2010 31 December 2013 -
“2-%fF 3 June 2015
~AZA ZE-ZE+ZA=t+-H
E_Z-R%7A=H
Others 330,000 - - - 330000 0682 4 August 2009 4 August 2009 -
it “EZENE 3 August 2014
NATA ZZENE/\ANAZE
“E-mENAZH

1,705,000 - 220,000 - 1,485,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
9. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

(Continued)
Notes:

1. During the financial year, the closing price of the Company’s
share immediately before the date (11 May 2011), on which
220,000 share options were granted was HK$2.564*.

¥ As adjusted after taking into account the effect of the Bonus
Issue in September 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and the short positions of the
directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFO")) which are required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they have
taken or deemed to have under such positions of the SFO) or which
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which are required, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued) ESERROZER &)
Long position ¥R

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company ARRZBH RBABRG 2 Ex
(a) Interests in shares of the Company (a) RARGIRGDZ#Ezm

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

BREEEBIZEER
Number of
underlying
Percentage of shares held
issued ordinary under equity
shares derivatives
Number of Total BRIT RATEIR
Name of Director Capacity shares interests EER ETHISHERE
Exns &2 R E KRR B RO E
(Note 1)
(P &E1)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Beneficial owner 6,930,000 160,578,000 59.09% -
REFEEL ERBEAA
Interests of controlled 43,648,000 - - -
corporation (Note 2)
REEE RS CGEY)
Founder of a discretionary 110,000,000 - - -
trust (Note 3)
ZRETANE (P £3)
Mr. Ma Fung On Beneficial owner 4,323,000 14,223,000 5.23%
BETRE ERBEAA
Interests of controlled 9,900,000 - - -
corporation (Note 4)
REEE RS GED)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung Beneficial owner 1,949,200 3,883,000 1.43%
FHERE ERBERA
Interests of controlled 1,933,800 - - -
corporation (Note 5)
REEEER (B 5E5)
Professor Wong Sook Leung,  Beneficial owner - - - 220,000
Joshua ERBmBA
BEROHUK
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Beneficial owner 330,000 330,000 0.12% -
Steven ExBEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)
Long position (Continued)

(a) Interests in shares of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

1. These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of
the share opinions granted by the Company, the details of which

are set out in the sub-section “Share Option Scheme”.

2. 43,648,000 shares are held by Billion Linkage Limited, the entire
issued shares of which are held by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse

in equal shares.

3. 110,000,000 Shares are held by Superior View Inc., the entire
issued shares of which are ultimately held by Fidelitycorp Limited
as the trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the beneficiaries of which

are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

4. 9,900,000 Shares are held by Global Class Enterprises Limited,
the entire issued shares of which are held by Mr. Ma Fung On.

5. 1,933,800 shares are held by Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd, the

ultimate shareholder is Mr. Lee Kam Hung.

Annual Report 2010/115

EERROzER (A
HRr#E

B E

(a) RALRGIRGZ#am (&)

B R 1 15 A IR M B R 2
IR 9 2% - BRI (R R

Bllnghe

7%43,648,0000% I% 13 B3Billion Linkage
Limited#5 78 * M2 &2 EEBEITRM A
HREZETHAR I REEBSH—F -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Long position (Continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company's associated
corporation
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in Suga Electronics
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company:

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEE B KB ER 2T

Report of the Directors
EEENE

EERRMD 2HER (&)
¥R (E)
(b) WAL EIEEEER (D Bz

REAARZEMBRAREEEFERARAER
HEVETT  BRZEETRD

Number of
Non-veting
deferred Percentage of
shares (Note 1) issued shares
Name of Director Capacity EREREL =5 &)
=Y 55 B EA (k1) BB E D
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Interests of controlled corporation 3,680,000 92%
REREL XA (Note 2)
(Bt3E2)
Mr. Ma Fung On Interests of controlled corporation 240,000 6%
BEREE XL R (Note 2)
(Ff&E2)
Notes: Bt &E -

1. These non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to any distributions
upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary
shares has been distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

2. The 4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares in Suga Electronics
Limited are held as to 80% by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
and 20% by Broadway Business Limited. Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr.
Ma Fung On hold 92% and 6% interests in each of Essential Mix
Enterprises Limited and Broadway Business Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above and under the “Share Option Scheme”,
none of the Directors of the Company have any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations as defined in the SFQ as at
31 March 2011.

1. ZEERNERETRMEERZ KM
BE - BRE - ABELTBRIEARES
IR 9 A% &3 A%10,000,000,000/8 T8 © 2%
BERERETEROBAEAFTIESIR

2. 4000000R=EETFHRDAIEREE
iE T BX 1% 9> Bl B Essential Mix Enterprises
Limited &2Broadway Business Limited®f &
80%K%20% - REFBLRBEEREES
B 7 RlI# Essential Mix Enterprises Limited &
Broadway Business Limited#5 %5 92% N 6%

BREXKRIERESE I BETREEN  RZZ

——F=ZA=1+—RH RAREEHERELR

AR EAEEOER (TR RE S LIEERD) 2K

7~ MR RESPEBERERXE -
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EEEARE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company was materially interested, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
In the opinion of the Directors, there is no such competing business
as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2011, the following persons (not being a director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.
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Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of shares issued shares

ESpE 55 ROEEBE ERITROABEIL

Superior View Inc. (Note 1) (Ff5E1) Beneficial owner 110,000,000 40.48%
EnEEA

Billion Linkage Limited (Note 2) (K1 52) Beneficial owner 43,648,000 16.06%
EnfEBA

Notes:

1. The entire issued share capital of Superior View Inc. is ultimately
held by Fidelitycorp Limited as trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the
beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

2. The entire issued share capital of Billion Linkage Limited is held by
Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse in equal shares and, as such, Dr. Ng Chi
Ho is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Billion Linkage
Limited under the SFO.

—

Superior View Inc.2 20 B 1T A HEACHR
IR 5 FE S 3T A ZFidelitycorp Limited 48454
FZEAZXBARREBEB LI ZRE -

2. Billion Linkage Limited 2 2P B BT AR R B %
BTHEFEIREBSE—¥  WREBFSRHE
5B - RE T HAR AP EBillion Linkage Limited
B2 ERkn 2z -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the Directors, there
is no person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, who has an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provision 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at
31 March 2011.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 21.3% of the Group’s total revenue and the five
largest customers accounted for approximately 69.3% of the
Group's total revenue. In addition, the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 5.3% of the Group’s purchases while
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
17.5% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company's
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 March 2011, the Company was not involved in any material
litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or arbitration were
pending or threatened or made against the Company so far the
Company is aware.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 27 to 34.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offered
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Suga International Holdings Limited
NG Chi Ho

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
F&E BB EBAFR 2 F

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF SUGA INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suga
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the "Group”) set out on pages 55 to 163, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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& BB B AFR2F

Independent Auditor's Report
& Az SRR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
& & B & F R 2 A

Balance Sheets
BEABERXR

As at 31 March 2011 R=ZF——%=HA=+—H

Group Company
big- | PN
2010 2009 2011 2010
“T-%F CZTTHhE ZB--F "T-TH
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TAT FTET TR FET
(As restated)
(E7)
(Note 2.1(a))
GEZAIE)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and mE - BE K&
equipment 6 113,367 105,892 62,761 - -
Land use rights Tk A 7 4,225 4,267 4,399 - -
Goodwill S 8 1,059 1,059 1,059 - —
Investment in subsidiaries NHBRRZKE 9 - = = 65,849 65,468
Interest in an associate R — R & A E]
LR 10 - - - - _
Interest in a jointly 1 — [ 2R (R 4 5
controlled entity ER KR 11 - - - - -
Available-for-sale financial ~ A HEHBEE
asset 12 4,150 - - - -
Financial assets at fairvalue 32 A FEiZAEZ
through profit or loss JHBEE 13 11,481 - - - -
Bonds investments BEHEE 14 14,01 - - - -
Deferred income tax assets ~ BIEFMEHEE 22 1,888 2,301 2,179 - =
150,181 113,519 70,398 65,849 65,468
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BB 16 155,062 122,890 125,341 - -
Trade and other receivables  EUE FHRA K
H o e W 3R 0E 17 144,403 127,989 96,018 250 179
Tax recoverable i B 4 18 366 200 1,116 96 20
Amounts due from JEE Ut T /B8 /2 A R0
subsidiaries 9 - - - 140,046 104,513
Amount due from a jointly  FEUR— R R HEHI
controlled entity EByE 11 26,112 24,082 27,601 - -
Derivative financial THEE2BMTE
instruments 18 498 168 - - =
Cash and cash equivalents ~ RERREZEY 19 161,149 127,429 79,647 268 1,332
487,590 402,758 329,723 140,660 106,044
Total assets EEME 637,11 516,277 400,121 206,509 171,512
LIABILITIES g
Non-current liabilities *REBEE
Bank borrowings BIIEE 21 33,499 26,163 3,636 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFMEHEE 22 2,275 2,579 2,746 - =
35,774 28,742 6,382 - -
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Balance Sheets
BEBERXR

As at 31 March 2011 R=ZE——&%=F=+—H

Group Company
N | ViNUNE
2011 2010 2009 2010
“2—-% —Z-% “TTNF e T-%
Note HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 i HK$' 000
k=3 TER BT TAET j TET
(As restated)
(Z31)
(Note 2.1(a))
GEAIE))
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables EREHERK
HiERN®E 20 169,623 130,097 84,111 1,986 2,182
Income tax payable FERFEH 17,661 18,222 14,401 - =
Bank borrowings RITEE Al 12,755 8,448 8,683 - =
Finance lease liabilities BEMEERE - - 42 - —
Bank advances for factored ~ HRIEEW A Z
receivables RITHRK - - 2,175 - -
Derivative financial PTEERITA
instruments 18 - 160 - - -
200,039 156,927 109,412 1,986 2,182
Total liabilities BEAE 235,813 185,669 115,794 1,986 2,182
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves HEARRAIRE
attributable to the equity BAEAZBRA
holders of the Company L
Share capital BA 23 21114 24,252 23,084 21174 24,252
Other reserves H it 25 110,764 103,237 96,732 128,454 126,531
Retained eamings RBRF 25
— Proposed dividend — 8RR S 43,514 15,811 8,149 43514 15,811
- Others —HAh 220,506 187,308 156,362 5,381 2,736
Total equity BEREE 401,958 330,608 284,327 204,523 169,330
Total equity and liabilites EZRkE&EAE 637,171 516,277 400,121 206,509 171,512
Net current assets RBEERE 281,551 245,831 220,311 138,674 103,862
Total assets less current EELERAD
liabilities &% 437,132 359,350 290,709 204,523 169,330
Director Director
EE EFE

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these E62R13E N AGEMEHRR—3 D -
consolidated financial statements.
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A

Consolidated Income Statement

e W

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BBZ=F——F=A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—E——-fF —ET-FF
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Revenue Wz 26 1,191,058 959,866
Cost of sales 85 & AR 29 (1,028,540) (832,851)
Gross profit EF 162,518 127,015
Other income HAasudg A 27 716 797
Other gains H i e 28 28 1,607 -
Distribution and selling expenses DIEHREEER 29 (13,659) (14,699)
General and administrative expenses — R RITHEHEEH 29 (49,366) (49,706)
Operating profit =i 101,816 63,407
Finance income & WA 30 1,581 458
Finance costs A& A AR 30 (1,031) (652)
Finance income/(costs) — net MEWA S (RAR)—FE 30 550 (194)
Profit before income tax B P15 B0 B& 102,366 63,213
Income tax expense FIEHAX 31 (11,928) (6,708)
Profit for the year FREF 90,438 56,505
Attributable to: BB
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 32 90,438 56,505
Earnings per share for profit FREBARATBRERSEEA
attributable to the equity holders (R 2 Tk &F
of the Company during the year
— Basic (HK cents) —E AR (B 33 33.51 2176
— Diluted (HK cents) —#58 (B4L) 33 33.32 21.63

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are

consolidated financial statements.

Dividends

an integral part of these

&5
iy
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e EIAK

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BiZ=F——F=A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—2-—-F —ZT-ZF
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FAT
Profit for the year F R Al 90,438 56,505
Other comprehensive income: HithZEWA :
Exchange differences arising on BREGING B R R B SRR
translation of foreign subsidiaries FTEAE X =58 5,329 -
Fair value gain on available-for-sale ~ AJ{tHEMBEEEZ
financial asset A EK R 275 -
Other comprehensive income FREMEBERA -
for the year, net of tax MR IE 5,604 —
Total comprehensive income FR2EBALHE
for the year 96,042 56,505
Attributable to: B8
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 96,042 56,505

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these EE2RI13E 2 AGEMBHRER—3 D -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
jf*")’\,za,\@%

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BBZ=F——F=A=+—HLFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

ANRAREFEAEL
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
TN Hituft e REBEF ag
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT FHT THET THEI
Balance at 1 April 2009 R-ZZBBENENA-—B2&&H 23,084 96,732 164,511 284,327
Profit for the year FREF - - 56,505 56,505
Total comprehensive income 2T WA 4% - - 56,505 56,505
Transactions with owners: SEEBAZENRS -
Employee share option scheme:; & 8 B A% ##:1 2] :
Value of employee services EERE2EE - 1,174 - 1174
Proceeds from shares issued ~ 1T{FBE IR R B 1TIR
upon exercise of options ZFEHE 1,168 5,331 - 6,499
Dividends paid 2R E - = (17,897) (17,897)
Balance at31 March2010 R-ZE-F£=A=+—H 24,252 103,237 203,119 330,608
i
Profit for the year FERRF - - 90,438 90,438
Fxchange difference arising on 2 &8 5N B2 &)
translation of foreign EAERZS
subsidiaries - 5,329 - 5,329
Fair value gain on available- ~ AJEEEREZ AFEKR
for-sale financial assets - 275 - 275
Total comprehensive income 2 W A 8% - 5,604 90,438 96,042
Transactions with owners: SEEBAZENRS .
Bonus issue of shares BITAR 2,457 (2,457) - -
Employee share option scheme: & 8 B AR #E T2l
Value of employee services EERK2EE - 598 - 598
Proceeds from shares issued ~ 1T{ BB AR IEES 24T IR
upon exercise of options PR 465 3,782 - 4,247
Dividends paid Bk E = = (29,537) (29,537)
Balance at31 March 2011 R=-ZF--£=A=+—H
2R 21,174 110,764 264,020 401,958
The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these ER2R13E 2T ARV HHRE—Ho -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
rEeRenExR

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BiZ=F——F=A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—E-—F5 —ZT-ZF
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FHET
(As restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from operating REXBZRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KEEBEECRE 36 102,382 95,970
Interest paid EfRH A (1,031) (652)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREEREN (9.712) (608)
Mainland Chinese corporate income 2t B EMER
tax paid (3,255) (1,652)

CEXBEECHEFA

Net cash generated from operating

activities 88,384 93,058
Cash flows from investing RETBZHERE

activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME  WELEE

equipment (18,078) (56,660)
Proceeds from disposals of property,  HEWE HMEMREZ

plant and equipment FT1S 58 36 327 74
Purchase of available-for-sale BANHEENBHEE

financial assets (3,875) -
Purchase of financial assets at BARAFELABRZZ

fair value through profit or loss B EE (11,424) —
Purchase of bonds investments BAGFRE (14,011) -
Interest received B HE 1,581 458

Net cash used in investing activities X EEBFTA 2R F58 (45,480) (56,128)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= AN AN =i —§
el mExR
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BBZ=F——F=A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—2—-F% ZZT-TF
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FERT FAT
(As restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from financing RMETBHZRERE
activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares 1T I AR RS B 1T AR 1D
upon exercise of share options Z TS EIE 4,247 6,499
Proceeds from long-term bank loans ~ KHISRTTERFTEFHIE 20,000 30,000
Repayment of long-term bank loans ~ EERHEITERK (9,642) (8,405)
Repayment of capital element of EER AL RE
finance lease obligations RN - (42)
Increase in trust receipt bank loans S EIERITE FKIL N 1,285 697
Dividends paid ENARE (29,537) (17,897)

Net cash (used in)/generated from ®BEEE (i) B4

financing activities ZHREFHE (13,647) 10,852
Net increase in cash and cash RekBeSEMEINFE

equivalents 29,257 47,782
Effect of changes in foreign ExFagrl

exchange rates 4,463 =
Cash and cash equivalents, RBekBeEED  F4

beginning of year 127,429 79,647
Cash and cash equivalents, ReERREEEY K

end of year 161,149 127,429

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these FO2E13E 2 BGAMBRE—3D
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERMI 7T

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 28 September 2001. The Company’s shares have
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 September 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, manufacturing and
sales of electronic products, moulds and plastic products. The
Group has operations mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao.

The address of the Company's registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 June 2011.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied for all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
inclusion at fair value of available-for-sale financial asset
and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B A& R TR M5 T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 EESHBEME#)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RHEEE(E)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity BRIER BN EREENRRMERE
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting BERETHESH G mEERE
estimates. It also requires management to exercise RERAS BT HE KR AEL 7
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's o S RBIEEEZH S FEH 2
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree gE RESAVEHERMSBEK
of judgement or complexity, and areas where assumptions AR R fhEt 2 SIS AK AR B -

and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Effect of adopting amendments and (a) BRAE T HERZNEETRZE
interpretations to existing standards B
The following new standards, amendments to TR« ERERT R EE
standards and interpretation are mandatory for RZZE—TFMA— AR
the Group for the first time for the financial year R E S of 5l ANE B & KRB o

beginning 1 April 2010.

e HKFRS 3 (revised), ‘Business combinations’, o AEBMBmMELERNBIN (K
and consequential amendments to HKAS B EBEH]  UEKE
27, ‘Consolidated and separate financial BT ERER45RE
statements’, HKAS 28, ‘Investments in BBEYBKBRR]  BEEG:
associates’, and HKAS 31, ‘Interests in joint BI85 [ 2R E | NE
ventures’, are effective prospectively to BERTERENR S LR
business combinations for which the acquisition | 2 ABEIEET - AR KA
date is on or after the beginning of the first RZEEARKEBRR—-Z
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 —ZFWNA—As 2 EFAR
April 2010. ZEEFEREHASZE

ZERBAG -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI5E

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting amendments and
Interpretations to existing standards (Continued)

The revised standard continues to apply the
acquisition method to business combinations
but with some significant changes compared
with HKFRS 3. For example, all payments to
purchase a business are recorded at fair value at
the acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured
through the statement of comprehensive
income. There is a choice on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis to measure the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
All acquisition-related costs are expensed.
These amendments have had no impact on the
Group's reported results for the current period
and financial position.

HKAS 27 (revised) requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests to
be recorded in equity if there is no change in
control and these transactions will no longer
result in goodwill or gains and losses. The
standard also specifies the accounting when
control is lost. Any remaining interest in the
entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or
loss is recognized in income statement. HKAS
27 (revised) has had no impact on the current
period, as there have been no transactions with
non-controlling interests.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Effect of adopting amendments and
Interpretations to existing standards (Continued)

HKAS 17 (amendment), ‘Leases’, deletes specific
guidance regarding classification of leases of
land, so as to eliminate inconsistencies with
the general guidance on lease classification.
As a result, leases of land should be classified
as either finance or operating leases using the
general principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the
lease transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
to the lessee. Prior to the amendment, a land
interest in which title was not expected to
pass to the Group by the end of the lease term
was classified as an operating lease under
“Leasehold land and land use rights’, and any
premium paid was amortised over the lease
term.

HKAS 17 (amendment) has been applied
retrospectively with effect from 1 April 2010
in accordance with the effective date and
transitional provisions of the amendment.
The Group has reassessed the classification
of unexpired leasehold land interest and land
use rights as at 1 April 2010 on the basis of
information existing at the inception of those
leases, and recognised certain leasehold land
interests as finance leases retrospectively. As
a result of the reassessment, the Group has
reclassified certain leasehold land interests
from operating leases to finance leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R TR MY 5 E

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 EEETHEHSMES)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RELEE (&)
(a) Effect of adopting amendments and (a) ERANETHEERZIEETRZ
interpretations to existing standards (Continued) BZEE(E)

The accounting for a land interest classified as a DEABERE 2 T i
finance lease is as follows: ZEFEEBAERAT
A land interest classified as a finance lease is DEAMERE, TR
stated at cost less subsequent depreciation. If BRARERITE AL © i
the property interest is held for own use, that MEERDFEBR - AlL
land interest is accounted for as property, plant iEme ARINIEDE - K
and equipment and is depreciated from the date B REE W RS
the land interest is available for its intended use VE4R F B & A8 DA AT {F F S HF
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset MM REETERE -
and the lease term.
The effect of the adoption of this amendment is BL4N I TRIS ST 2 22 22551 N
as below: N

As at
As at 31 March 1 April
R=A=+—-8B RKEA—H

2011 2010 2009

—B—-—-F _T-TF _TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FEx FET FET

Decrease in land use rights T HbfE AR (25,742) (26,452) -
Increase in property, Mz WE R
plant and equipment A IE AN 25,742 26,452 -

For the year ended

31 March

BE=A=1+-BL%E

2011 2010

—B——-fF —T-TF

HK$' 000 HK$' 000

FTERT FHET
Decrease in amortisation BHEAZRD

expenses (710) (355)
Increase in depreciation FrERIEM

expenses Mo 899
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Effect of adopting amendments and
Interpretations to existing standards (Continued)

EZETBERME#)

21 FEEE(E)
(a) FRANLTHE G ER 2 EETRZE

BT & (&)

There is no financial impact on the consolidated
balance sheet as at 1 April 2009 because the
property interest was acquired during the year
ended 31 March 2010.

HK-Interpretation 5, ‘Presentation of financial
statements — Classification by the borrower of a
term loan that contains a repayment on demand
clause’, issued on 29 November 2010 by HKICPA
with immediate effect. The classification of a
term loan in accordance with paragraph 69(d)
of HKAS 1 shall depend on whether or not the
borrower has an unconditional right to defer
payment for at least twelve months after
the reporting period. Consequently, amounts
repayable under a loan agreement which
includes a clause that gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time
shall be classified by the borrower as current
in its statement of financial position. This is
because the borrower under such an agreement
does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the classification of
term loans and the adoption of the interpretation
has no significant effect on the classification of
the long term borrowings of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI5E

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards, and
Interpretations mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2010 but not
currently relevant to the Group (although they
may affect the accounting for future transactions
and events)

(b)

HK(IFRIC) 9, ‘Reassessment of embedded
derivatives and HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’, effective for
annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

HK(IFRIC) 16, ‘Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

HK(IFRIC) 17, ‘Distribution of non-cash assets to
owners’, effective for annual period beginning
on or after 1 July 2009.

HK(IFRIC) 18, ‘Transfers of assets from
customers’, effective for transfer of assets
received on or after 1 July 2009.

HKAS 1 (amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards, and
interpretations mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2010 but not
currently relevant to the Group (although they
may affect the accounting for future transactions
and events) (Continued)

e HKAS 36 (amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’,
effective for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2010.

e HKAS 39 (amendment), ‘Eligible hedge items’,
effective for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2010.

e HKFRS 1 (revised), ‘First-time adoption
of HKFRSs’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and HKFRS 1
(amendment), ‘Additional exemptions for first-
time adopters’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2010.

e HKFRS 2 (amendment), ‘Group cash-settled
share-based payment transactions’, effective for
annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2010.

e HKFRS 5 (amendment), ‘Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations’, effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2010.

e Second improvements to HKFRS (2009)
were issued in May 2009 by the HKICPA. All
improvements are effective in the financial year
of 2011.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI5E

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2010 and have
not been early adopted

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (amendment), ‘Prepayments of
a minimum funding requirement’, effective for
annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2011.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19, ‘Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity instruments’, effective for
annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

HKAS 12 (amendment), ‘Deferred tax: recovery
of underlying assets’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

HKAS 24 (revised), ‘Related party disclosures’,
issued in November 2009. HKAS 24 (revised)
is mandatory for annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2011. Earlier application, in
whole or in part, is permitted.

HKAS 32 (amendment), ‘Classification of rights
issues’, issued in October 2009. The amendment
applies to annual period beginning on or after 1
February 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R IR MI5E

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE (&)
(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations (c) BEFEMGAEAR-E—FFIH

EEETBREE#)

have been issued but are not effective for the

financial year beginning 1 April 2010 and have

not been early adopted (Continued)

e  HKFRS 1 (amendment), ‘Limited exemption from
comparative HKFRS 7 disclosures for first-time
adopters’, effective for annual period beginning
on or after 1 July 2010.

e HKFRS 1 (amendment), ‘Severe hyperinflation
and removal of fixed dates for first-time
adopter’, effective for annual period beginning
on or after 1 July 2010.

e HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, issued in
November 2009. The standard is not applicable
until 1 January 2013 but is available for early
adoption.

e Third improvements to HKFRS (2010) were
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of adoption of the above new
standards, amendments and interpretations which
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2010 and not been
early adopted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BB &E B EFR QA

B RS ERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liahilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered an indicator of an impairment of the asset
transferred. The financial statements of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.8). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements
iy s EL RS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 ZREKREB (&)
(b) Associates (b) B2\ a]

B BERBE &)

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in an assaciate includes goodwill
identified on acquisition (net of any accumulated
impairment loss).

The Group's share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative postacquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
The financial statements of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B E B AR 2 7

B RS ERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in which
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities” post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
jointly controlled entities have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23

24

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors collectively who make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERMI 7T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

2
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

B BRERBE @)

25 Y% - MERRE

Leasehold land interests classified as finance leases
and all other property, plant and equipment is stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
of other assets are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate costs less residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance lease 38 years
Buildings 35-40 years
Leasehold improvements 5-10 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are
recognised in the income statement.

“ﬁ%@ﬁﬁfZﬁfim%¥M&

EEMEMYE - BEMRERELK
$ﬂ§ﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁk%
BEeRABENBARBEERRERER
SRR

EHRIAEAREARKEBEN AR

ARGEE - ANIA B KARES A 525t
B HERAT T ABEZRE
EXERRBILEE (RERBAM
E) c FIERMEEERERARE
B BN RS R R

“ﬁ%ﬂéﬁﬁZEfimmim%
= Al AR R E P ik 2 B i on i 8 o
ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ%Zﬁ%imZ%%&ﬁ
ft & B 2 S E T HERI AT 8 A AR I A
BERADBEEKRANRGE AT

DEARRMENMEE

ZHEE i 384
BF 35-40%F
HEMEEE 5-104F
T 5 K i 23 5EF
R K2 35 4 5
BEZFREERTAFEHER

BRZMMHAR (HEM) °

MEEZ FEEBRBE M RE S
%8 - Bl EBRE(E 5 BB 30 = B] Y [al
+ % (f15E2.8) o

HEZ BR R BAERIEEREE
Bx RRERAER-




18

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

=

Notes to the Financial Statements

BB &E B AFER QA

B RS R AR MI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Land use rights
Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Land use rights are
amortised using the straight-line method over the period of
the land use rights.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate/jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of
an associate is included in investment in an associate.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment (Note 2.8).

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

29

associates, jointly controlled entities and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested at least annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
accounts exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)
As at 31 March 2011, the Group's financial assets
primarily comprise financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for sale.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which are classified
as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
comprise trade and other receivables, bonds
investments, amount due from a jointly
controlled entity and cash and cash equivalents
in the balance sheets (Note 2.11 and 2.12).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 ERSRBRRHBE@®)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Recognition and measurement

29 BIBEE (&)
(b) HRREE

(c)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial asset and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are recognised in the income statement
in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
recognised only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. If, in
a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For equity investments classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in the separate
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the separate consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the separate consolidated income statement.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 BEETTHRBEE)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Inventories 2108

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income or
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 ERSRBRRBE@)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 216 NI RIEZEREH (&)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liahility
in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution
pension schemes for its employees. The pension
plans are funded by payments from employees
and by the Group. The Group’s contributions to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are expensed as incurred. The assets are
held separately from those of the Group and managed
by related independent professional fund managers.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group
contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant municipal and provincial governments based
on specified percentages of the relevant employees’
monthly salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has no
further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. Contributions to these plans
are expensed as incurred.

For employees in Macao, the Group contributes to
a defined contribution retirement plan organised
by the Macao government based on the amount as
stipulated by the relevant rules and regulations.
The Macao government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees under the retirement plan
and the Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to this plan are expensed as incurred.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 BEETHRBEE)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation

211 EERTF (&)
(b) BR17 1753 B

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a carresponding credit to equity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Other benefits
Other directors’ and employees’ obligations are
recorded as a liability and charged to the income
statement when the Group is contractually obliged
or when there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations is small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 B EREBRE £
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Revenue recoghnition 219 W= R

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The group manufactures and sells a range of
electronic, moulds and plastic products in the
wholesale market. Sales of goods are recognized
when a group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the products,
the amount of sales can be reliably measured and it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entities.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

(c) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Leases

(a) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor), including upfront payment made for
leasehold land and land use rights, are charged in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
lease balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current and non-current borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised in the
income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

2.21 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. The Group does not recognise liabilities
for financial guarantee at inception, but performs a liability
adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing its
net liability regarding the financial guarantee with the
amount that would be required if the financial guarantee
would result in a present legal or constructive obligation.
If the liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the income statement immediately.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 ERSRBRRHBE@®)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Derivative financial instruments 22TESMIE

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured
at fair value on the date the derivative contracts are
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedged instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had not designated any
derivatives as hedging instruments. Changes in fair values
of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
being included in the income statement as “other gains”.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s equity holders in case of final
dividend and the Company's directors in case of interim
dividend.

2.24 Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s performance.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and its business transactions, assets
and liahilities are principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Foreign currency risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. As Hong Kong dollars are pegged
against US dollars, management considers that the
Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk
with respect to RMB. Management will continue
to monitor foreign currency exchange exposure
and will take measures to minimise the currency
translation risk. As at 31 March 2011 apart from
certain non-deliverable forward foreign exchange
contracts entered into with commercial banks which
were stated at fair value, the Group has not used
any financial instruments to hedge against foreign
currency risk. The exchange rate of RMB to foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland Chinese Government.

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, if both Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars strengthen/weakened by 5%
against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for each year would have changed
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains
on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant
group companies.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIBERER#Z)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BERRBEE &)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SME &Sz (#)

(if)

Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) B %1% i #1138 A0, CRl 4)

— Strengthen 5% —FH{E5%
— Weakened 5% — B2 1B5%

2011 2010
—_E——F

—E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET

4,207 3,710
(4,207) (3,710)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for the cash and cash
equivalents, details of which are disclosed in Note
19. The Group's interest rate risk primarily relates to
its bank borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group currently does not have a hedging
policy in respect of the interest rate risk. However,
management monitors the related interest rate risk
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk exposure should the need arise. The
interest rates and teams of repayment of borrowings
are disclosed in Note 21.

The Group has no fixed interest rate borrowings.
Therefore it does not have any fair value interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, if the interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower than the prevailing interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$193,000 (2010: HK$173,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group's
financial assets are trade and other receivables,
derivative financial instruments, amount due from
a jointly controlled entity and cash at banks. The
amounts of those assets stated in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk is concentrated on a number
of major and long established customers. Trade
receivables from the top five customers amounted
to approximately 54% of the Group’s total trade
receivables. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories and to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any individual customer. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group’s past experience
in collection of trade receivables falls within the
recorded allowances. In order to minimise credit risk
to the Group, the Group has certain non-recourse
factoring arrangement with banks to cover the credit

risk.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
Transactions in relation to derivative financial
instruments, if any, are only carried out with financial
institutions of high reputation. The Group has palicies
that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one

financial institution.

For balances due from the jointly controlled entity
and subsidiaries, the Group regularly monitors the
financial positions of these companies to assess their

recoverability.

3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting
period, and management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. The Group
manages its liquidity risk by controlling the level
of inventories, closely monitoring the turnover
days of receivables, monitoring its working capital
requirements and keeping credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s bank facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities and net-settled derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. Derivative
financial liabilities are included in the analysis if
their contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEERERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEBREE (&)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) REELE S (&)
Group rEE

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total

PR—F —EWF MELF HBILF &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TET TAET TAExT TAET TARL

31 March 2011 —E——F
=A=t+-—H
Trade payables B8 RN 153,477 - - - 153,477
Other payables and H A i - 5/ I
accruals R IEGHE A 16,146 - - - 16,146
Borrowings BE 13,149 13,120 9,000 14,196 49,465
182772 13,120 9000 14196 219,088
31 March 2010 —E-BF
=A=t+-—H
Trade payables B8 RN 113,156 - - - 113,156
Other payables and H A i - 5/ I8
accruals K EFT & 16,941 - - - 16,941
Borrowings BE 8,787 3,000 9,000 15,224 36,011
Net settled derivative FEB&&E T4
financial instruments & @ T A 160 - - - 160

139,044 3,000 9,000 15,224 166,268
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

B R R R o

3 UBERERE@)

31 MBEBEEE)
(iv) KB E %/ (&)

Company NN
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
PR—F —ZEZWMFE —EZIhF BBEIEF mat
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TEx FTExT TFTERT FTERT  FER
31 March 2011 —E——F
=A=t+-—H
Other payables and H fth F& 5 5K 18
accruals RIETEA 1,986 - - - 1,986
31 March 2010 —E-FF
=B=t+-—H
Other payables and H i J& {5018
accruals K EETE A 2,182 — - - 2,182

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue

as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce

debts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by shareholders’ equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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2011 2010

—F——% CZTFTF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTER FHBT

Total bank borrowings RITEEEE 46,254 34,611
Total equity e 401,958 330,608
Gearing ratio BEARABELE 11.5% 10.5%

The increase in the gearing ratio resulted primarily from
the increase of bank borrowings for financing working
capital.

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

e |nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRERER#E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AEEMR/E(E)
The following table presents the Group’'s assets and TREBWAEFN -_ZE—FR_-F
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2011 —EF=A=+—HERAFEFEZ
and 2010: BEKRBRE-
2011 —B-—fF

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R FZR FE=R it

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000
FERT TR FERT FERT

Assets: BE
Available-for-sale financial AIft HE M EE
assets - - 4,150 4,150
Financial assets at fair value & A FEZEAEBE
through profit or loss MBEE 3,674 7,807 - 11,481
Derivative financial TESMTA
instruments - 498 - 498
Total Assets EEBE 3,674 8,305 4,150 16,129
Liabilities: afE:
Derivative financial TEEMT A
instruments - - - -
2010 —E-FF
Group
A&
Level 2
F8
HK$' 000
FATT
Assets: BE
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA 168
Liabilities: afE:

Derivative financial instruments TESMTA 160
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.
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3 UHRABER#Z)

3.3 AFEMRFE)
TRERF=RIENEBHE_T——
ER-_ZE-—ZEF=ZF=1+—HIEE

2011 2010

—E2-—-F —Z-TF

HKS$' 000 HK$' 000

FTHER FAT

At 1 April REA—HB - -
Additions NE 3,875 -
Change in fair value ANEEZEE 275 -
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 4,150 =

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1 which
comprise primarily equity investments classified as trading
securities or available for sale. The Group’s listed bond
under financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
as at 31 March 2011 are level 1 financial asset and its fair
value is determined by the quoted price in active market.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. The
Group’s foreign currency exchange note under financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments above are level 2 financial assets
or instruments and their fair value are determined with
reference to quotations provided by various banks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. The Group’s available-for-sale financial asset as at 31
March 2011 above is level 3 financial asset and its fair
value is determined by reference to the net asset value of
the fund as determined by the fund administrator.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Income taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. When the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax charges
in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(e)

(d)

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs of inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgement and estimates. These estimates are
based on the correct market condition and the historical
experience of selling prices of similar nature. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
andwrite-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverabhility
of trade receivables. Provisions are applied to trade
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
assessments is based an the credit history of its customers
and the current market condition, and requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
impairment is recognised in the year in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations prepared on the basis of management's
assumptions and estimates (Note 8). These calculations
require the use of estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)
(e) Employee benefits — share-based payments

(f)

The determination of the fair value of the share options
granted requires estimates in determining, among others,
the expected volatility of the share price, the expected
dividend vyield, the risk-free interest rate for the life of
the option, and the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable as stated in Note 24. Where the
outcome of the number of options that are exercisable
is different, such difference will impact the consolidated
income statement in the subsequent remaining vested
period of the relevant share options.

Fair value of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and derivative financial
instruments that are traded in an active market are
determined by the quoted market prices.

For the fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments not traded in an active market, the
Group would use the quoted price provided by counterparty
to estimate the fair values. The methodologies, models
and assumptions used in valuing these financial assets
and derivative financial instruments require judgement by
management which are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date.

R ERERMT 7T

4 BEGITFERAE 2

(e) BEBF-LURH X MFIE

(f)

EFCROUBREATERANETE
(Eh %) REFEMKIE  AHKRS
EHE - BRESRHA CERRL
o UREMA TR BRERA
(ZnYEE24PT ) 1B HER] o B R A
TITEBEERE TR EEZRKF
EHRBERREARKR TRBR &S
ek o

MREERTEEMIAZAY
(=l
HEBERMGEERCMBEERITES
BMIAZRAFEETSREETE

R BAERBERMIZER CMHE
ERTEEBTAZAFENS * X
SEMNBHFRUZBEMG AT
B -REWHEERTESMTAZ
fRERE B  RRABREEENR
L TERESEEERERZ
MmHERIEL
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Group (collectively referred to as the
“CODM") that make strategic decisions. The CODM reviews the
internal reporting of the Group in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The CODM considers the business from a product perspective
and assesses separately the performance of electronic products,
and moulds and plastics products.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of the results of reportable segments.
Finance income and costs, corporate income and expenses and
fair vale gain of financial assets are not included in the results
for each operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM.
Other information provided to the CODM is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

Revenue from external customers is shown after elimination of
inter-segment revenue. Sales between segments are carried
out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from external parties
reported to CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that
in the consolidated income statement.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income tax
assets, tax recoverable and corporate assets, all of which are
managed on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable segment
exclude current and deferred income tax liabilities and
corporate liabilities. These are part of the reconciliation to total
balance sheet assets and liabilities.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 EERGE)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the MEE-_ZT——FR-_ZT—ZTHFE=HA
reportable segments for the year ended 31 March 2011 and =t+—HUEFEEHMOBRFELENR
2010 is as follows: AREZHDEERDET -

2011
—Eg——fF
Moulds and
Electronic W ER

products products Elimination Total
BAR

EfEm ¥BEMm K a5t

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

THERT FHERT FTHER FHER

Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers M3 & F Utz 1,137,249 53,809 - 1,191,058
Inter-segment revenue DEBKE - 12,410 (12,410) -
1,137,249 66,219 (12,410) 1,191,058

Results of reportable segments  AI 2D FEHE 90,481 8,251 - 98,732
A reconciliation of results of EWMOBEER

reportable segments to profit $ Wz HERMAT -

for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments ~ A] 2 R 18 ¥ 45 98,732
Unallocated income KABEKA 761
Other income Hapg A 716
Other gains H iz 1,607
Operating profit g | 101,816
Finance income A WA 1,581
Finance costs A& AR (1,031)
Profit before income tax B P 15 5% Al A 102,366
Income tax expense FIEBAX (11,928)
Profit for the year F W A 90,438
Other segment information HithnEEHR
Depreciation on property, plant ~ ¥1% - W= MREFTE

and equipment 6,424 2,417 2,951 11,792
Amortisation of land use rights = 3{sF F 4 12 $% - 55 80 135

Additions to non-current assets  JEREBBEZARE

(other than financial assets and (BB E K&

deferred tax assets) BELERIEEERIN) 14,538 1,096 2,444 18,078
Income tax expense FIEBAX 10,212 1,853 (137) 11,928
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEERE)
2010
—E-ZF
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products  Elimination Total
BEAR
EFEM LBEM ¥18H B
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FAT FAT FET FET
Revenue Weas
Revenue from external customers %P8 & B U 2 917,638 42,228 - 959,866
Inter-segment revenue 7 $8 Uk & = 11,173 (11,173) =
917,638 53,401 (11,173) 959,866
Results of reportable segments A 2R DB EE 56,980 7,444 -~ 64,424
A reconciliation of results of E2EmOBFEER
reportable segments to profit FRRMZEHERDOT :
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments  A] 2D EEE 64,424
Unallocated expenses RAOBEXH (1,814)
Other income Hag A 797
Operating profit s 63,407
Finance income BMERA 458
Finance costs BE B AR (652)
Profit before income tax B B 15 25 A& A 63,213
Income tax expense B R X (6,708)
Profit for the year F R F 56,505
Other segment information Hhn EER
Depreciation on property, plant ~ #1% - BE MR EFTE
and equipment 8,389 3,052 1,719 13,160
Amortisation of land use rights = 3t {5 F 42 % §5 - 52 80 132
Additions to non-current assets  IEREBEEZRNE
(other than financial assets (B & E MEERIE
and deferred tax assets) BERIN 2,869 1,209 52,582 56,660
Income tax expense FIEHiAx 5,595 1,292 (179) 6,708
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

The segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31 March and
the reconciliation to the total assets and total liabilities are as

PEEN (#)
REAZ+—AZAREERSRAMER
EERERBEREHENT

follows:
2011
—E——F
Moulds and
Electronic [ ER
products products Total
EAR
EfEm Z2BER a5t
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FET FET
Segment assets DEEE 508,185 0,517 549,702
Deferred income tax assets EEFTEMEE 1,888
Tax recoverable EIEEIE R 366
Unallocated: KA
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 52,579
Other investments Hig & 29,642
Other unallocated assets HihRDELEE 3,594
Total assets per consolidated mEBEEARR
balance sheet FIREERE 637,771
Segment liabilities DEAE 164,286 6,576 170,862
Income tax payable TSR 17,661
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMERAE 2,275
Unallocated: ROHE :
Bank borrowings RITEE 42,862
Other unallocated liabilities HitRD AR 2,153
Total liabilities per consolidated mEBEEARR
balance sheet FIRBEEE

235,813
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets

Deferred income tax assets
Tax recoverable

Unallocated:

Property, plant and equipment
Other unallocated assets

Total assets per consolidated
balance sheet

Segment liabilities

Income tax payable

Deferred income tax liabilities
Unallocated:

Bank borrowings

Other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities per consolidated
balance sheet

NEEE
EXEMBHREE
A] i @ 3% 18
RO

WxE - BB MERE
HitRDECEE

RRBEERER
FImBERE

NEEARE

JE {4 P 15 3¢
EXFRRARE
RO
RITEE
HitRDECRE

RRBEERER
i~ B R

5

TREN#)
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2010

—E-ZF

Electronic
products

BFER
HK$" 000
FH7

418,751

124,755

Moulds and
plastic
products
BER
PRBREm
HK$" 000
TAET

36,859

4,954

Total

At
HK$’ 000
FET
(restated)
(&%)

455,610
2,301
200

52,226
5,940

516,277

129,709
18,222
2,579

32,504
2,655

185,669
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue from external customers by country for the year
ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

TEER (&)
RARABIRBREFZAM AEEHE=-ZT
——ER-E-TFE=F=1+—HILFE
ZERE D ZIIREPREATIAT

2011 2010
—B-—-§f _—T-TF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FET FAET

The United States of America e 419,438 263,358
United Kingdom o 286,001 305,043
Japan SN 209,312 197,906
PRC (including Hong Kong) R (BIEEE) 96,495 48,060
Australia BN 94,258 116,951
Others H 85,554 28,548
1,191,058 959,866

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding
deferred income tax assets, by geographical locations is as

AEBBMEE NS ZERDEE(TRE
EREREEE)HHMT :

follows:
2011 2010
—g——-F —FT-FF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT FHETT
Hong Kong e 86,992 55,328
Mainland China oK fE 61,079 55,542
Macao B PS 222 348
148,293 111,218

For the year ended 31 March 2011, three (2010: four) major
customers, each of which accounts for 10% or more of the

BE-_T——f=-A=1t—RALFE X
=& (2224 :WR)TBEEFEMHE

Group’s external revenue. The revenue is attributable to the HRREBINIIUZE Z10%K A F - BE
REDIREETERD A FIHWT

segment of electronic products and details are as follow:

2011 2010

—E2——F —E2-FF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FE T FETT

Customer A EEH 254,107 268,971
Customer B 2B 201,782 148,331
Customer C EFER 180,727 104,195
Customer D EET 94,258 116,951
730,874 638,448
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and

Annual Report 2010/115 %

6 ME BERRE

Leasehold

buildings improvements

1R

g7
HKS 000
TAT

HEMX
3

HKS" 000
THET

Group
r&E

Plant and
machinery
K
5813
HK$" 000
TR

Furniture
and
equipment

BRRRR
HKS"000
THET

At 1 April 2009 R=2ErE=R=+-H
Cost Z%N 46,281 19,603 100,846 30,478 197,208
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (7,581) (18,305) (82,857) (25,704 (134,447)
Net book amount EHFE 38,700 1,298 17,989 4,774 62,761
Yearended 31 March2010 HZ=-Z-ZT&=F=1+-H
LEE

Opening net book amount FONREFE 38,700 1,298 17,989 4,774 62,761
Additions NE 49,627 2119 2,233 2,681 56,660
Disposals HE - (350) (4) (15) (369)
Depreciation g (1,820) 822) (8.434) (2,084) (13,160)
Closing net book amount ERERFE 86,507 2,245 11,784 5,356 105,892
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-ZE£=R=+-H
Cost, as previously reported AR (RT3 69,101 19,970 103,053 33,050 225174
Effect of adoption of HKAS17 ~ HRMBA S ERNEHIFE 26,807 - - - 26,807
Cost, as restated A (E5) 95,908 19,970 103,053 33,050 251,981
Accumulated depreciation, ZBIE (W)

as previously reported (9,046) (17,725) (91,269) (27,694) (145,734)
Effect of adoption of HKAS17 ~ HBMFAESHENSEH 2 ¥ & (355) = - - (355)
Accumulated depreciation, ZRBME (E5)

as restated (9,401) (17,725) (91,269) (27,694 (146,089)
Net book amount, as restated BRI {E (£31]) 86,507 2,245 11,784 5,356 105,892
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 ME -BMERRE#E)

Group
K%H
Furniture
Land and Leasehold Plant and and

buildings improvements  machinery  equipment Total
ik  HEWR KR
2 % k#E HARRE I
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TRT AR TR TERT  TAX

Year ended 31 March 2011  HZ=-Z-—-F=A=+-H

LEE
Opening net book amount, FENEEFE(WAF)
as previously reported 60,055 2,245 11,784 5,356 79,440
Effect of adoption of HKAS17 ~ HMB B G ERF 175
ZTE 26,452 - - - 26,452

Opening net book amount, ENEREFE(EY)

as restated 86,507 2,245 11,784 5,356 105,892
Additions NE 600 744 12,613 4121 18,078
Disposals HE - - (3) (2) (5)
Depreciation e (2,497) (645) (6,609) (2,041) (11,792)
Exchange realignment & 5 3 B 543 n 452 12 1,194
Closing net book amount FREMFE 85,153 2421 18,231 7,556 113,367
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE--%$=A=1+-H
Cost A 97,124 21,690 118,518 31,047 214,319
Accumulated depreciation ZRENE (11,971) (19,269) (100,281) (29,491) (161,012)

Net book amount BRH %E 85,153 2,421 18,231 1,556 113,367
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6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Depreciation expense of HK$6,638,000 (2010: HK$8,434,000)
has been expensed in cost of sales, and HK$5,154,000 (2010:
HK$4,726,000) has been expensed in general and administrative
expenses.

The Group's interests in land and buildings are analysis as
follows:

Annual Report 2010/115 %

ME - BMERRE &)

¥ & F %6,638,0008 0 (Z T — T F ¢
8,434,0007T) ERHEK AN - M
5,154,000/ 7T (=& — = F : 4,726,000/%
) AR —BEITHREEBERAR -

AEBNTHREFT 2ESNTNT

Group

rEH
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009

—F-—-f ZT-TF ZTTNF
=R=+t—-8 =A=t+—H mA—H

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FaT FHET FHET
In Hong Kong, held on REBZFE
— lease between 10-50 years —MHAF BN F102505 48,260 48,970 -
Outside Hong Kong, held on REBEINTE
— leases between 10-50 years —MHAF BN F102505 36,893 37,537 38,700
85,153 86,507 38,700

As at 31 March 2011, certain bank borrowings are secured on
land and buildings with a carrying amount of HK$48,260,000
(2010: HK$48,970,000) (Note 21).

Net book value of machinery held under finance leases of the
Group is as follows:

R-ZE——F=A=+—8 HEFTHT
& B A BRI {E 548,260,0008 7T (— T —F
% : 48,970,000/ 7T ) 2 £ b R & F{EHK I
(MizE21) ©

AEERBRERNBE 2 HEEEEE
T

2011 2010

— g2 —ZT-ZF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FHET FHET

Cost B 7R - -
Less: Accumulated depreciation o REITE - =
Net book value REFE - -

Depreciation for the year FRME
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7 LAND USE RIGHTS
The Group’s interests in land use rights represented prepaid
operating lease payments and their movements and net book
value are analysed as follows:
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B R R R

T fEARE

REERTHERE  EaRREHE
BFRIE - ERZEHREEFE TN
T

2011 2010

—E——-F CZIZT-ZF

HK$' 000 HK$' 000

FERT FET

Beginning of the year, as previously reported 74 %) (ZART51)) 30,719 4,399
Effect of adoption of HKAS17 RinE B G ERIEITHR

-Z (26,452) -

Beginning of the year, as restated REH (E) 4,267 4,399

Amortisation i (135) (132)

Exchange differences fEH Z%8 93 -

End of the year NG 4,225 4,267

Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBBINGE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years A FH N F10E05F 4,225 4,267
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8 GOODWILL 8 B/E
Movements of goodwill during the year are as follows: HERERNZEENMT
2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-FF
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
TET FHET
Cost and net book amount A K AR S8R 1,059 1,059
Impairment test for goodwill BERERNR
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units EEOREESBIREEEHR 2 ANEE
(CGUs) identified according to operating segment. BEESBEMN([REEEBNM]) -
A operating segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation HESZREDBEHMEZY|WMT o

is presented below.

2011 2010

—2-—-F5 —Z-FZF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTER FHET

Electronic products BEfEm 1,059 1,059

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based ReEsBEM2AIRESBIHIEERER

on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash HEELET AU EDRBLEEERER

flow projections based on financial budgets approved by RREDFHRVREEEL ZBEER
management covering a five-year period. ETRAI#EST

2011 2010

—g-—-% -T-Tf

HKS$' 000 HK$' 000

FERT FAT

Gross margin FH = 16.5% 12.4%

Growth rate BEREX 4.5% 5.0%

Discount rate Bh 38 &= 5.0% 5.0%
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GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

The assumptions have been used for the analysis of the CGU
within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and their expectations for the market development.
The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with
the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant segments.

Based on discounted cash flow forecast prepared by
management, the directors are of the view that there is no
impairment of goodwill as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS
DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Investment in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

F LMD - BEKAE

B R R R

[k A€ )

BERENR (F)
BRBRCBEIMEENBETREE
HEEAL

EEERBBEREAREMSER CRY
BEEENERE - A MNEFHEEREE
EAMEZTBB - - IRAZHBRERE
BATA R - o] RERIERE D MR 2 IEE R o

BEEEERIUZEHBRESRETEN -
EEZERAEN_ZE——FR-_FT-ZTF=HA
—t—BEEETERE-

REBARZREREWKHERR
b
(a) RMBARAZKRE

Company
PN
2011 2010
—T-FF
HK$’ 000
TETT

—E——fF
HK$’ 000
TR

65,849 65,468

The Directors are of the opinion that the underlying value
of investment in subsidiaries is not less than its carrying
values as at 31 March 2011.

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries
The balances due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand. The carrying
values of the amounts due from subsidiaries approximate
their fair values.

EEZERAE RHBRARIZIREZRHS
BEITIRENR-_ZT——F=A
=t+t—HZzEEE-

(b) FEURH AR FIE
R B R BRI < AR T B IE A
REREARBRER - BFUMBAF
FRBEZEAEELQAFERS -
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9 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS 9
DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Details of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:

REBLARIZRERERKEB A A

RIE(£)

(c) KRRAFR=ZE——F=A=1+—
BZEENBLRIFENOT .

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity

AMAL/ H IS
RAERERER

Issued share
capital/paid-up
capital
BE&f7/
BMARE

20M

~F--%

Group equity interest

AEEEERARR

2010

-g-%¢

Principal activities
and place of operation

IRRBREXBA

Suga International Limited {vi) ~ British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding in
limited liability company US§700 Hong Kong
ABRAES ERRI00ET REBUREREZR
BRAT
Suga Electronics (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of electronic products
Limited (formerly known company HK$?2 in Hong Kong
as "Speedy Source Limited”) &S - BRAF LaRET REAEEETEM
EEARAT]
Suga Electronics Limited (i) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of electronic products
BEEFERAAI liability company HKS2 in Hong Kong
&t HRAA LTakET REREEETEM
Non-voting 100% 100%
deferred shares
HK$4,000,000 (i)
BERFE
EERD
4,000,0007% 7c()
Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Mainland China, limited HK$33,500,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of electronic
Co., Ltd. {ii), (viii) liability company 33,500,000 7 products in Mainland China
BEETF (R E - FRAA RPBREEfEm
AR (i) ~ (vl
Suga Networks Hong Kong Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of electronic products
Limited liability company HK$100,000 in Hong Kong
BERREARRLA &8 BRAT LBk REBEEEfEm
100,0007% 7
Suga Networks Equipment Mainland China, limited HK$17,500,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of electronic
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. liability company 17,500,007 70 products in Mainland China
(" SNESL") (i), (viii) e ARAF RABREEFEM
fEEms e ORI
ARRA([fEEBR

)i} (vili
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9 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS 9
DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(c) Details of the principal subsidiaries of the

RMBRARIZREREWHE R T
MIE(#)
(¢) ARABR=ZBE——F=A=+-—

Company as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity

AMAL/H I
RERERER

Issued share
capital/paid-up
capital
B&f7/
BARK

AzEBMBARFROT : (&)

Group equity interest
AEBEGRARS

2011 2010
=$-—-F “%-%%

Principal activities
and place of operation

IREBREXLY

On Million Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Property holding in
liability company HK$2 Hong Kong
b AR &% ARAR LaRET REERENE
Typhoon International Limited ~ British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares 100% 100% Property holding in
limited liability company USs1 Mainland China
RERRBRAT AERUES BARAA ERRIET RPERFENE
P&S Macao Commercial Macao, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of pet products
Offshore Limited company MOP100,000 in Macao
HERPMREFEE RS R BRAT LEk REAFEEENER
ARAT 100,000 P %
Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen| Mainland China, limited HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of pet products
Co., Ltd. ("PSSL") {iv), (viii) liability company 10,000,0007% 7. in Mainland China
HEEX(RINERRE  #E FRAA RPBEEENED
(MaERIN) () - (viii
Suga Digital Technology Limited  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Design and trading of electronic
liability company HK$2 products in Hong Kong
EEEBHRERAR &% ARAR LaRET REBRFAREEST
Em
Precise Computer Tooling Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of moulds and plastic
Co., Limited liability company HK$500,000 products in Hong Kong
BRISHHEERAR &% ARAR LRk REREERARER
500,000 70 Em
Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling Mainland China, limited 15$6,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of moulds and
and Plastic Injection liahility company plastic products in
{Huizhou) Co., Limited Mainland China
[“Nodic" ) {v), (viii)
BO-RAREFZ(EN) +E FRAA 6,000,000 7T R BEERARER

BEAR AW - (i)

EDD
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9 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS
DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Details of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)~ The non-voting deferred shares of Suga Electronics Limited
are held by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and Broadway
Business Limited, which are owned by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and
Mr. Ma Fung On, directors and beneficial shareholders
of the Company. These non-voting deferred shares have
no voting rights, are not entitled to dividends, and are
not entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless
a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares.

(i) Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in Mainland China with an
approved period of operation of 20 years until June 2014.

(iii)  SNESL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Mainland China with an approved period of operation of 20
years until October 2022.

(iv) PSSL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Mainland China with an approved period of operation of 20
years until April 2024.

(v)  Nodic is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Mainland China with an approved period of operation of 30
year until September 2020.

(vi) The shares of Suga International Limited are held directly
by the Company. The shares of the other subsidiaries are
held indirectly.

(vii) None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at
any time during the year ended 31 March 2011.

(Viii) All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have a
financial accounting year end date on 31 December in
accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is
not coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group were prepared based on the
management accounts of these subsidiaries for the twelve
months ended 31 March 2011.
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RBEBLARRERERHELQR

E (&)

(c) KARAR=-ZF——F=A=1—
A2EEMBARFREWD : (#)

(o

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

vi)

(vii)

(viii)

EEEFERAGAZERERE
i€ B% 17 B Essential Mix Enterprises
Limited }2Broadway Business Limited
HE MEZEARNBAAAES
ExRFAREETIREARE
HHE REEREREERMHE
BIRESWERE  FERK RE
ZBRFEAEED EERE AR
10,000,000,000/8 7L 1% - Z S E\IRE
RELERNFHEAFTAIEDIK °

EEEF(RINERARAEFE
REXIZZINELE EBiZEZ
EEHREE T —NFNAL
A H204 o

EEREEMBERRRERTL Z
EINBELE BEREZEEHRRE
E-T-__F+ A1t BAH20F -

RIERIBET IK[‘*WiZ%’JI\
BlhX BREZEXHREE
E_MEMA L - AHI20% -

MAORETBERERLZZ2HNED
X BEREZERBREE_ZT—
FENHLE - RE30F -

Suga International Limited 2 B3 i 7K
NEEERE - EtB AR ZRK
MAlRAD R EERES -

RBE-FT——F=ZA=+—HL
FELAER HEMBRARAE
MEETIEEER -

BRBEMER  ERTBEAEK
VZMBRRZHMBRETFEFE

RART-_A=t—R HAKH
ZERBATR - AEERA MR
KIEZENBRARBRE_T——
FZA=+t—BLEt-AAZER
REmR -
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10 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 10 A—EEE LT 2ER
Group
rTEE
2011 2010
-2 —Z-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FET
Share of net assets EIEEEFRE - -
Group's indirect interest in an associate, which is unlisted, is as AEBR—EIELTHE AT ZHEEREZD
follows: N
Group's share of
Particulars of issued Country of AREELR % Interest
shares held incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenue Loss held
FECRTRGHE AR LEF 8E &f KA BE  BEELY
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000
TiEn Thr Thn TiEn
Modern Tech Limited ~ Ordinary shares Hong Kong, limited 2011 105 1 - - 2857%
HK$10,500,000 liabiity company ~ —F——%
(2010: HK$10,500,000)
MAMRARLA  EBRI0500000% T B% ARAW 210 105 n - - B5%
(ZF-%F: 2 %%
1050000075 72)
No accumulated losses are recognised by the Group for Modern HARAREESEEIINE EAERE AFIR
Tech Limited as the Group does not have further obligation to BRRAIN 1R - BN ER B3 8 B 3 A0

bear the losses of the associate beyond its cost of investment. RFBRAGEREETER -
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11 INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 1N R—BHEZEHERZEEREW
ENTITY AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY —EHE E%‘J B((HREZHE
CONTROLLED ENTITY (“JCE") g ) RE

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—g--% -—2-T%F
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
TERT F&T
Share of net assets (Note (a)) JE L& EEFE (M 5E(a) - -
Amount due from a jointly controlled JE W — A 2k R 12 I B B8 5K IR
entity (Note (b)) (Bt 3E(b)) 26,112 24,082
Notes: B aE
(a)  No accumulated losses are recognised by the Group for the JCE (a) HARAEEMESEAELREHEE
were as the Group does not have further obligation to bear the TERAAINZ 518 - B BN
losses of the JCE beyond its cost of investment. B 22 | & B RETEE -
(b)  The amount due from the JCE comprised trade receivables from (a) FEUS I [EI4E H B AE 2008 B FE B YL L R I

the JCE. The carrying value of the amount due from the JCE
approximates its fair value.

The credit quality of balances that are neither past due
nor impaired in the amount of HK$26,112,000 (2010:
HK$24,082,000) could be assessed by reference to their
historical payment record. Management believes that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are expected to be fully recoverable.

The balances are denominated in U.S. dollars.

HIEREHRNK - BARAKRZESEENA
ZEEHERERFERS -

K B HA SR B 45 426,112,000 T (—ZF—
TF 1240820008 70) CEEERALE
HipE @R T - BEEMRE -
HREEERTES KB RZSEHTE
Hir 28Uk - B ERZEEHRELR
BREE -

REBRARTTHEE -
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INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (“JCE") (Continued)

The Group’s indirect interest in a jointly controlled entity, which
is unlisted, is as follows:

B R R R

11 R—BHLEEHER 2 ERRER
—EiaREEFER ((HEEHE
2=\ &)

AEER LT HRIENER 2 HE
BEMT

Group's share of

Particulars of issued Country of AREEL % Interest
shares held incorporation Year Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit held
REERORNFE B3 WEEE £ BE & KA R RERE%
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS 000
Tim Tin ThT Tim
Suga-Al Limited Ordinary shares HKS2 Hong Kong, limited 2011 26,112 26,112 296,945 = 50%
LERET liabiity company ~~ —E——F
2% BRAW 2010 15578 15578 159,387 W 50%
3%k
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's REEBRZHEREHERE 2 Em I A
interest in the jointly controlled entity, and no contingent RBE ZLREHEBASNELAE
liabilities exist in the jointly controlled entity. f& e
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 12 AREEMBEE

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——-fF —E-FTF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
At 1 April MU A—AH - -
Additions NE 3,875 -
Changes in fair value during the year REANRFEEE 2175 -
At 31 March =A=+—H 4,150 -

The available-for-sale financial assets represented 5,000 non-
voting, redeemable, and participating shares in an unlisted
equity fund. It is denominated in US dollars and the fair value
is determined by reference to the net asset value of the fund as
determined by the fund administrator.

AHEEVBEERFELTRAESS
50000 K AERERI2ERERD - B
BEENETIE EAFENZEES
EBAFMEBETZEGEEFEMET

2 121
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13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 13 BRAFEZRABRZZUKEE

PROFIT OR LOSS

2011 2010

—g2-—-F5 —Z-ZF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTER FAET

Foreign currency exchange note HNEE = 5 7,807 -
Investment in listed bonds REMEFZKRE 3,674 =
11,481 -

2011 2010

—2-—-F —ZT-ZF

HKS$' 000 HK$' 000

FER FAT

At 1 April REA—H - -
Additions NE 11,424 -
Changes in fair value NEEE 57 -
At 31 March R=R=+—H 11,481 -

As at 31 March 2011, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represented listed corporate bonds and a currency-
linked note.

The listed corporate bonds will mature between 2 and 5 years
and are with coupon rate from 6.88% to 7.04%. These bonds
are denominated in Renminbi.

The currency-linked note is denominated in US dollars and the
principal amount is US$1,000,000. Such currency-linked note
will mature in March 2013. The note does not bear any interest
and the return will be determined based on various exchange
rates as of the maturity date. The Group is entitled to a 100% of
the principal amount upon maturity.

At 31 March 2011, the fair value of the listed corporate bonds
and the currency-linked note were determined based on the
quoted market price and valuation report provided by the
counterparty bank, respectively.

R-F——F=ZA=+—R BEAVERZ
AB#ZMBEER EMARES - AR
EXRHARE -

FHARESBR-_ERAFERNEE  E8
R 56.88%27.04% - EHEUARETIE -

EXHBDEBAEZTINERAE R
1,000,000% 7T - EAEX B AZBEHNZ
T—=F= A5 - ZBETFE - BHE
BIHHAEBZEERME - AEBAE
A B B Iy IR K 2 B8 2 100% ©

RZ_F——F=A=+—R  LWAFAME
7 REXHARE 2 AFEDBIERTS
WEREFHRITARE 2 EHEREME

F o



Annual Report 2010/1 14 SUGA NTERNATIONAL HOLDINGE LIWITED 1 93

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R IR MI5E

14 BONDS INVESTMENTS 14 BERE
2011 2010
—g--% "T-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT TET
At 1 April N el = - -
Additions wNE 14,01 -
At 31 March R=R=+—AH 14,011 -
The terms of maturity of the bonds investments are summarised BEEEZHMIETBENT -
as follow:
2011 2010
—E-—f —ZT-FTF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR THETT
Between 1 and 2 years E—FEF-F 4,956 -
Between 2 and 5 years E_FEERF 1,344 -
Over 5 years AERE 7.1
14,011 =
The coupon rates of the bonds investments are from 2.70% to BERB 2 EBRAEFGE2T0%ED.55% o

5.55% per annum.

The bonds investments are denominated in the following BERERIATEELE -
currencies:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FTHET TAT
US dollars T 7111 -
Renminbi AR 6,300 -
14,011 -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying amount of bonds investments.

HEAH  SKEERRAEERRER
B RFEE-

e
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 RERESZ2EMIA
Group
r5E
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale el
ERR BRAVERA
EHHE BEZEE #HE &t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FEL THET TET FHET
Assets BE
At 31 March 2011 RZB——F=A=1—H

Available-for-sale financial asset (Note 12) 7Tt i & BT % & & (Fi712) - - 4,150 4,150
Financial assets at fair value through BATELARREZ

profit or loss (Note 13) BBEE (313) - 11,481 - 11,481
Bonds investments (Note 14) EHRE (H4) 14,011 - - 14,011
Trade and other receivables, excluding B E ZHEF R E R UYGIE -

prepayments (Note 17) TEERMAFE (FE17) 143,611 - - 143,611
Amount due from a jointly controlled Bl —RLREHER

entity (Note 11) U8 (a) 26,112 - - 26,112
Derivative financial instruments TESBI A (Ka8)

(Note 18) - 498 - 498
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) RekReZEM (M19) 161,149 - - 161,149

344,883 11,979 4,150 361,012
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 REFE P22/ IE (&)
(Continued)

Group

r5H
Assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss

BAYE
BEXR AR
FE U 3K 18 ZEE &5t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FAET FET FAET
Assets EE
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE—TF=RA=+—H
Trade and other receivables, JE U E 5 BR 5k K EL e Uk
excluding prepayments PIB - TEEEMNRIE
(Note 17) (M¥&E17) 127,599 - 127,599
Amount due from a jointly JEU — R IR E 88
controlled entity (Note 11) FIE (B EE11) 24,082 - 24,082
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBMIT A (MFE18)
(Note 18) - 168 168
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) R& NKIR & HBY (H:E19) 127,429 - 127,429

279,110 168 279,278
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 BERESsz2EMIA (&)
(Continued)
Liabilities at
Other fair value
financial through
liabilities  profit or loss
RAFETZA
HthBaE BazAE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
Liabilities &8
At 31 March 2011 R-T——F
=A=+—8H
Trade and other payables ENE SRR REAM
(Note 20) J& 1 3038 (M 5E20) 169,623 - 169,623
Bank borrowings (Note 21) RITEE (M5E21) 46,254 - 46,254
215,877 - 215,877
At 31 March 2010 R_E—TF
=A=+—H
Trade and other payables ERNEZERREA
(Note 20) J& 1+ 3% 78 (B 7£20) 130,097 - 130,097
Bank borrowings (Note 21) RITEE (M&21) 34,611 — 34,611
Derivative financial instruments PTES R T A (MfsE18)
(Note 18) - 160 160

164,708 160 164,868
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 REHNE S 2EMIA (&)

(Continued)

Company
QA
Assets at fair

Loans and value through

receivables profit or loss
BERk EBEAFERTA
EWRFHE BREZEE
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Assets BE
At 31 March 2011 RNZT——%F
—A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE i Bf /B8 X B kI8
(Note 9) (Mt5E9) 140,046 - 140,046
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEFED
(Note 19) (FfF7E19) 268 - 268
140,314 - 140,314
At 31 March 2010 RZZE—Z2F
—A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B /B8 1 B kI8
(Note 9) (M$5E9) 104,513 - 104,513
Cash and cash equivalents ReELREEEY
(Note 19) (M$5E19) 1,332 - 1,332
105,845 - 105,845
Liabilities at
Other fair value
HTELHEL through
liabilities  profit or loss
Hih ZAFEZA
MKEaE BnzAfE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHETT
Liabilities afE
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F
—A=+—H
Trade and other payables N ESERR
(Note 20) H b fE 5 FRIR
(M$&E20) 1,986 - 1,986
At 31 March 2010 RZZE—Z2F
—A=+—H
Trade and other payables BN E GERER R
(Note 20) H fth fE 1 3R IR
(B 3£20) 2,182 - 2,182
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16 INVENTORIES 16 8
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—2-—-F5 —Z-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FHE T
Raw materials =& 121,588 94,276
Work-in-progress B in 29,745 23,243
Finished goods BX &h 11,662 11,663
162,995 129,182
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (7,933) (6,292)
155,062 122,890
Certain inventories were held under trust receipts bank loan ETEERETEWRERTESRZHEA o
arrangements. The cost of inventories recognised as expense R ERYRAAABEEKRARZFEKAK A
and included in cost of sales amounted to HK$921,301,000 921,301,0005& 7t (—Z —Z 4 : 748,838,000
(2010: HK$748,838,000). BIT) o
The Group realised a loss of approximately HK$1,641,000 for REE-_Z——F=A=+—HBItFE "
the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: HK$Nil) in respect of AEEMMBEERE#IRFEESR 2
write down of inventories to their net realisable value. These EEAA16410000(ZE—FF : £) -
amounts have been included in cost of sales in the income ZESTENINE R ZHERK AT LR o

statement.
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BRE SRR H MEKRE

Group Company
r&EH A H
2011 2010 2011 2010

—B——F T -TF %% _T-TF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TAET TERT TAET

Trade receivables EWE 5 BER 128,651 116,212 - —
Less: Provision for impairment 3 : JR{E B HE (3.626) (6,964) - -
Trade receivables, net EWE SRR FEE 125,025 109,248 — =
Prepayments 8T RRIE 792 390 250 179
Rental and other deposits HekHEMES 1,257 1,864 - -
Value added tax receivables JFE Ui 3 FY 9,626 8,595 - ~
Others Hith 7,703 7,892 - -
144,403 127,989 250 179
The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables AEBREWE SEREZ N EMEIIEZEE
approximate their fair values. MEBREANFEERS °
The credit quality of the trade receivables that are neither R BN B o (B FE UK Z 5 Bk 51103,372,0007%
past due nor impaired in the amount of HK$103,372,000 T (ZE—FF:88,411,000870) ZZBEE
(2010: HK$88,411,000) could be assessed by reference to ZN2ZHBAERSBRI MR RETT
their payment history and current financial position. These S o FZEEWRIEE % ZF B R
receivables relate to a whole range of customers for whom N CERERME - BEEAGE AREE
there was no recent history of default. Management believes EEWEEANS NS EHTEH 28
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these WE - BB ZEERIEL RERE -

balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balance are expected to be fully recoverable.
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17 EREZSRAREMERRIE (&)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: EKRE SRR BRI T :
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E2-—-F C—ZT-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FER FAT
0 to 30 days TEx=+1+H 103,372 88,411
31 to 60 days =+—ZXt+H 13,807 1,795
61 to 90 days AT—ZATH 5,386 5,456
91 to 180 days N+—Z—8/N\+H 1,636 13,475
Over 180 days —ANTHRE 4,450 7,075
128,651 116,212
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (3,626) (6,964)
Trade receivables, net WS SR TR 125,025 109,248
The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to its REE-—HRETHEPIBZEES -
customers.
As of 31 March 2011, trade receivables of HK$21,653,000 (2010: R—ZFE——F=ZA=+—H " 21,653,000
HK$20,837,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate BLTZEBESZGER (ZE—FF:
to a number of independent customers who have no recent 20,837,000/ 7T) B @ BB I ERE - 25
history of default. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as FEU B 5 BR 5K B % 22 3 A0 A% ¥ X R0 8%
follows: ZEUEFPHER - EUIRNRZRR DTN
T
2011 2010
—E2-—-F C—ZT-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FAT
31 to 60 days =+—%X~+H 13,807 1,795
61 to 90 days AT—ZEATH 5,386 5,456
91 to 180 days Nnt+—Z—8/\+H 1,636 13,475
Over 180 days —BNA+HRE 824 111

21,653 20,837
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 31 March 2011, trade receivables of HK$3,626,000
(2010: HK$6,964,000) were impaired. The individual impaired
receivables are mainly related to customers which no longer
have business relationship with the Group. The amount of
provision was HK$3,626,000 as of 31 March 2011 (2010:
HK$6,964,000). The impairment was firstly assessed individually
for significant or long ageing balances, and the remaining
balances were grouped for collective assessment according to
their ageing and historical default rates as these customers
were of similar credit risk. The ageing analysis of these
impaired receivables is as follows:

Over 180 days

—BNATBEMRE

B R R AR

17 BREZRAREMEWRKRE @)

W-_T——F=A=+—H - 3,626,000/8
T (ZZ—Z 4 : 6,964,000/ T) 2 EWZ
SEAERE - @R RERKKREE
ZHBRRASEAEEBBER 2R, A
e —T——GF=-A=+—BzEEA
3,626,000% 7T (==& — = F : 6,964,000/8
TL) c EASRBHEALHRZBES KIE
BN BREBEREPZEERRA
Y MHRBZERREBEERLESE
TES BRI - L E D RMERKERNR 2RI
SWWT -

2011 2010
—_E——F

—E-ZF
HK$’ 000
FHET

HK$’ 000
FTERT

3,626 6,964

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

FREZRFRERBEESNT

2011 2010

—F-—-% ZZ-%F

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

THER FAT

At 1 April RIMA—A 6,964 7,902

Reversal of provision for impairment BEREED (615) (938)
Receivables written off during the year F Pk R 86 UK (B 3RIE i 5H

as uncollectible 2 WK IE (2,805) -

Exchange differences bE W = E 82 -

At 31 March R=A=+—AH 3,626 6,964

As at 31 March 2011, the trade receivables from five customers
accounted for approximately 54% (2010: 64%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's credit risk management is disclosed in
Note 3 to the financial statements.

R-Z—F=/A=+—H KAERAE
FZRYE SEFIEEKE SRR EELD
54% (ZZ—ZF 1 64%) c NEBEZEE
[\ B B FR A B S SRR T RE3IR R o

131
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

Annual Report 2010/115

17 BREZRAREMERRE @)
RUESERERERATEREE

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—F-—-F5 C—ZTTF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 1,560 1,008
US dollars £ 119,765 106,625
Renminbi AR 3,700 1,615
125,025 109,248

All trade receivables are either repayable within one year
or on demand. During the year, the Group recognised a gain
of HK$615,000 (2010: a gain of HK$938,000) for reversal of
provision for impairment of its trade receivables. Such gain has
been included in the general and administrative expenses in the
income statement.

FTERKESEFENR —FANREREX
BE -FR AEERBEEKE SRR
B (B B 45 E 7R615,000/8 TS (2 —F
F o Yg#£938,00087T) - BEAMEEE A
WHEERAN—BRITREZBHET -
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17 EREZRAREMERFIE &)
The Group is not aware of any credit risk on deposits, AREBTTHBHILS  EUSEERLE
value added tax receivables and other receivables as their tEWZEETAEERR  ERARS
counterparties are either banks or government or corporation HHHBRITHBNHERR T EEFR
with good credit ratings. The majority of these financial assets AT REMBEERNI IR
are neither past due nor impaired and there is no history of WA BWEIEREE - BS - BUCEE
default. The carrying amount of deposits, value added tax MR EMERZFIEZ REERATNEBE
receivables and other receivables are denominated in the =i

following currencies:

Group Company
A%H ART
2011 2010 2011 2010

—§-—F “T-TF Z®--F “T-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
T#x  TEr Tz TAR

Hong Kong dollars BT 6,996 8,004 - -
Renminbi AR 11,590 10,347 - -
18,586 18,351 - -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting date is REBREEHzEsEERRA LI SHE
the fair value of each class of receivables as mentioned above. EWRIB 2 AFE - NEBYWERSE E[A
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. EH (R -
18 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18 fTE€mIA

Group
r&HE
2011 2010
—E2-—-F —E-FF

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =R BE =0
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THERT TERT R FAT

Forward foreign exchange RHEIIMNES 4

contracts 498 - 168 160
The notional principal amounts of the foreign exchange RENNESHON —_E——F=A=+—H
contracts at 31 March 2011 were US$2,000,000 (2010: ZBEARETEAR200000EXT(ZF—F

US$1,200,000). £ : 1,200,000 7T) °
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18 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18 fTEE®M T E (&)
(Continued)
All of the Group's forward foreign exchange contracts will REEMBERPIINESHNER_-_T—=
expire in May 2012 and November 2012. The maximum FEARZZE—ZF+—HRAEm -RZZ
exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2011 was the fair value ——F=A=t+—HAzE=EERRAER
of the derivative assets in the consolidated balance sheet. HEBEERABRZMTEEBERATE:

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 ReERBEEEEY

Group Company
FEHE ZANN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—E——-F _FT-TF Z8——F _T-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET TET FHET

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERSE 145,649 127,429 268 1,332
Short-term bank deposits RERITIER 15,500 - - —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAeEFED 161,149 127,429 268 1,332
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following BehBeFBYWRIATERESR
currencies:

Group Company
FEHE ZANN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—E——-F _T-TF Z8——F _T-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET TET FHET

Hong Kong dollars BT 10,063 12,090 229 494
US dollars XL 111,239 93,225 23 823
Renminbi AR 39,680 21,658 - -
Other currencies HiE% 167 456 16 15

161,149 127,429 268 1,332
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19 ReRASEEW &)
As at 31 March 2011, the effective interest rate on bank R-E——F=ZA=+—8 EIEX
deposits was 0.4% (2010: 0.4%) per annum. The bank deposits LEBRFNEREF0L% (ZE—FF
of the Group have an average mature of 31 days (2010: 25 days). 04%) - AEBZRITERZFHEHAE

BNK(ZE—ZTF : 25K) °

The conversion of bank balances and cash of the Group AEBUAREAEBZRITEHRNES N
denominated in Renminbi into foreign currencies is subject BRRINE 2B - BX P BBAEMS 2
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control V& B il 45 1 K 48 7E PTRR Il ©

promulgated by the Mainland China Government.

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ENEZRARHEMENTRIE
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: ENESERZERRONBAT -

Group Company
rEE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g-—F “T-TF —2——F —“T-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FHx  TET TR TE

0 to 30 days TE=+H 132,455 91,578 - =
31 to 60 days =+—ZX+H 10,215 9,246 - -
61 to 90 days ANT—ENTH 4,187 3,313 - -
91 to 180 days A+—Z2—8/\+H 1,799 4,133 - -
Over 180 days —BNATBEMRE 4,821 4,886 - -
Trade payables T E 5 ERN 153,477 113,156 -
Salaries and staff welfare payable fE{t %4 & 8 T&# 6,722 6,634 - -
Accrued expenses EETEA 4,276 4,092 1,986 2,182
Others Hith 5,148 6,215 - -
169,623 130,097 1,986 2,182
The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables AEBERNESERRREMENREZA

approximate their carrying value. FEHEHRAMBERS
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the
following currencies:

Annual Report 2010/115 %

19. BENEZRAREMENKER (&)
BNESRAEAELZATESEE

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—8-—-% C-T-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 19,482 14,543
US dollars £ 116,987 85,528
Renminbi AR 17,008 12,620
Other currencies Hh g - 465
153,477 113,156

The carrying amounts of other payables are denominated in the

following currencies:

Hit A RBAZREERZATESEE

Group Company
FEE DT

2011 2010 2011 2010
—e—-% “T-TF “8-——F —“T-%TF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHERT TAT THER FHET
Hong Kong dollars BT 5,332 7,804 1,986 2,182
Renminbi AR 8,980 9,137 - -
US dollars ETT 1,834 - - -
16,146 16,941 1,986 2,182
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21 BANK BORROWINGS 21 S|RITIEE
Group
rxEE
2011 2010
25 —ZT-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TART FAT
Non-current ERE
Long-term bank borrowings RERITIEER 42,862 32,504
Less: current portion of long-term B REBRITEERES B
bank borrowings (9,363) (6,341)
33,499 26,163
Current E
Trust receipt bank loans ERBIRIRITER 3,392 2,107
Current portion of long-term bank RHRITBERS LD
borrowings 9,363 6,341
12,755 8,448

Total borrowings BEARE 46,254 34,611
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21 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 21 |RITEE#)
The terms of borrowings are as follows: BER T MR

Group
rEHE
Trust receipt Other bank
bank loans borrowings Total

ERRBRTEK HiRT At
201 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—g-—f ~%-%F -%-—§ “2-FF —§——F “3-2F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
FHx  TET  FER  TET TR TEx

Within one year —FR 3,392 2,107 9,363 6,341 12,755 8,448
In the second year F-F - - 12,731 2,733 12,731 2,733
Between 2and5years F_FEFRHF - - 8,392 8,377 8,392 8,377
Over b years AFEUE - - 12,376 15,053 12,376 15,053
3,392 2,107 42,862 32,504 46,254 34,611
At 31 March 2011, the Group has aggregate banking facilities R-_ZE——F=ZA=+—H8 AEERE
of approximately HK$389,112,000 (2010: HK$432,304,000) for X ERKESRMEARITEELEN
overdrafts, loans and trade financing. 389,112,000/ 7T (ZZ —Z 4 : 432,304,000
BIT) °
Unused facilities at the same date amounted to approximately B B 2 &8 A @& 49321,661,000% 7T (=
HK$321,661,000 (2010: HK$393,297,000). These facilities are T—T4 :393,297,000 L) o BT REI
secured by: TFIEE R -
(a) certain land and buildings (Note 6) of the Group with the (a) ZNE B BRE(E A48,260,0008 L (= F
carrying amount of HK$48,260,000 (2010: HK$48,970,000). — = 148,970,000 70) 2 & T i

BT (FHEE6)

(b) certain inventories held under trust receipt bank loans b) EAERBRTERLZHBETIFAEZSE
arrangements. THEE-

(c) corporate guarantees provided by the Company and certain ) AARREETWBARRE AT
of its subsidiaries. R

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to comply with B EmEIN AEERZESTE TRITHE

certain restrictive financial covenants imposed by certain banks. mz & TR &I %R -
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BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 21 S|RITEE#E)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes AREFEEREH ZMEREGRANLRENE
and the contractual repricing dates were as follows: MEBHEWOT :
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FHET
6 months or less NEA AT 8,051 3,455
7 to 12 months +tE+ @A 4,704 4,993
105 years —ZRF 21,123 11,110
Over 5 years FENE 12,376 15,053
46,254 34,611
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as NEER ZERARET -
follows:

Trust receipt bank loans EREREBRITER 1.3% 1.1%
Other bank borrowings HiRITEE 1.2% 1.6%
As all the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates, HRE2RITETIRTZIETE  EEEFEHR
the carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair ﬁ;ﬂﬁ’&?{éﬂﬂ% MmaE B 4E 823876 7T

values and all balance are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. SI{E °

s 139
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are

Annual Report 2010/115

22 EEMBH
EEFRSHAERBENESTRERT
ARE AR EERERDAIERHAaEY
BRI BRI S M aE — B gEERE
BRI - HESB|MT

as follows:
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—g--% -—T-T%
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
Deferred income tax assets: BEFMSEHREE :
— Deferred income tax assets to be —@+ @A ®’YE 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEMSHEE (1,888) (2,301)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEMSHEE
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be - B+-_EAREEZ
settled after more than 12 months RIEFMBHEE 2,275 2,579

The movement in the net deferred income tax liabilities/(assets)
account is as follows:

EMETHEHER (AE)FELE
M -

Group
rEH
2011 2010
—g-—-% -T-Tf
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FTHT FHET
At 1 April M A— A 278 567
Charged/(credited) to income statement Rz RNk (GTA)
(Note 31) (P &E31) 109 (289)
At 31 March R=R=+—H 387 278
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

B R R o

ELEREH (#)
BEMEHEERBBERFAZEE (R
sHRE B RDER R 2 &R I
T

Accelerated tax depreciation

ERIBITE
2011 2010
— 2 —Z-ZF
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
THT FHETT
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEMGHEE
At 1 April REA—AB 2,466 2,746
Credited to income statement R R ETA (292) (280)
At 31 March W=A=+—8H 2,174 2,466
Tax losses
HEER
2011 2010
o
HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FTHET FHET
Deferred income tax assets BEMGHEE
At 1 April W A—A (2,188) (2.179)
Charged/(credited) to income statement N EE S Y ACI PN 401 (9)
At 31 March W=A=+—8H (1,787) (2,188)

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$15,482,000 (2010: HK$20,446,000) for Hong Kong profits tax
purposes and unrecognised tax losses of HK$18,323,000 (2010:
HK$39,006,000) for the Mainland Chinese enterprise income tax
which will expire during 2011 to 2015. No deferred tax assets
have been recognised for these tax losses as the directors
consider that it is probable that the temporary difference will
not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

R-ZTE——F=ZA=+—H #EFEF
EHmMEs AEBEERCHEAVEBE
15,482,000/ 7T (=& —Z 4 : 20,446,000
L) AP BEARECEMBHME @ RE
R IEEE 518,323,008 L (2 —F
% : 39,006,000 T) - WHR T ——4F
EE-NFHH - AREERAERE
BEAREIENA RGHRER - &R
ZEVEBEERAECHBEE -
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23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 BA

Number of shares Nominal value

g 4! 42 E B

"000 HK" 000
T’ THETL

Authorised - ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each AT —&REE0IA T2 EBK 2,000,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of BT REE —SREEIE T

HK$0.1 each Z &R
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZENFMNA—H 230,840 23,084
Issue of shares upon exercise of share REBREBITEREITRG
options (Note (a)) (Bt 3E(a)) 11,680 1,168
At 31 March 2010 RZE-ZTF=A=+—H 242,520 24,252
Bonus issue of shares (Note (b)) BATAL % (BT 5E(b)) 24,577 2,457
Issue of shares upon exercise of share REBREBITERZEITRG
options (Note (a)) (Bt 3E(a)) 4,647 465
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=A=+—H 271,744 21,174
Note: B =F -
(a)  During the year ended 31 March 2011, 4,647,000 ordinary shares (a) BHEZZE——F=A=+—"HILFE
of HK$0.1 each were issued upon the exercise of share options B B A e IE 1T 5 251 74,647,000/% B 1%
(31 March 2010: 11,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1) (Note 24). EHEVNBTZEBAR(ZZE—ZTF=H
=-+—H : 11,680,0008% & AR E E0.1%5 T
2 EER) (FiTsE24) o
(b) During the year, the Company allotted and issued 24,577,000 ) FR ARFR-_Z—ZTFAATBMNU
shares on 10 September 2010 by way of bonus issue (the “Bonus AL AR 317 77 =\ AL 3 [ 31724,577,000% A%
Issue”) on the basis of one new bonus share for every ten (T4 E1T]) REARREFHEE T
existing shares held by the shareholders. The bonus issue was AR ER B AR 10 AT ERE — AT AT AR » ATPRZE1T
funded by way of capitalisation of the Company's share premium AR RRR—e B BN BEERL -

of the same amount.



Annual Report 2010/115 %

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ E BB & B FR A

Notes to the Financial Statements

24 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 17 September 2002. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the Company may grant share options to certain
grantees (including directors and employees) of the Group to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under this Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the
Group shall not exceed 30 per cent of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The subscription price will
be determined by the directors, and will not be less than the
highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing price of
the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of
granting the options and the average of the closing prices of the
shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of granting the options.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding during
the year are as follows:

B R R o

24 BB

per share
she¥g
BRTEE

2011
—E—-—-F

Average

exercise
price in HK$

ARTR=BE=FNA++ B RMBE
RSB (TR R RS B1) - 1R 2 R AR
B AR AIMEREET RS (B
EERES) HERRENRBAL

b RRRRE B R EE D T
H B IREST BB R MR (TIE 2 BT B
TENBRER TS TR BT RS
AHE - FERBAR A FBEEITBA
0% - ABEBLETET  SERD R
RAEE - BEMRE2 X 56 Y ARG
FERE S AT SR B R AR B

B30 1 {8 2 5 B B 4D FE B 52 P AT S 25 U
mERRSERE)

FARATEBREZRE Z2EZSHMT

2010
—T-%F
Average
exercise
price in HK$
per share
5kz¥H
BITITEE

Number of
options

RS E
'000
T3

Number of
options

BREZE
"000
T4

At 1 April as restated (Note) %P9 A — A (E£7) (FizE) 0.682 3,820 0.780 12,700
Granted during the year FNEFD 1.252 2,250 0.750 8,300
Bonus issue of shares BATHALIR (P 2E)

(Note) 1.061 282 - -
Exercised 211t 0.862 (4,647) 0.556 (11,680)
Lapsed/cancelled BRM/ - - 1.230 (5,500)
At 31 March =A=+—H 1,705 3,820
Note: Mz -

As a result of the bonus issue of shares on 10 September 2010 AZE— TEHH‘I’E%’*TTHH&(WEZB(M)

(Note 23(b)), adjustments have been made to the outstanding share
options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s share
immediately before the date of exercise of share options was
HK$1.65.

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, all the outstanding options were
fully vested and exercisable, except 1,045,000 options granted
on 3 June 2010, which are with vesting period of 3.58 years and
are only exercisable on 31 December 2013.

BiE - ERARRRBARF 2 BRAETEE
HZ RITEBREELRBE -

ARBBMNEZRITEREREE B
BT E /1658 TT

Al Z h0#EF

RZFE——FR-_F—ZTF=A=+—H M
ﬁrﬁﬂ%fﬂizﬁﬁﬁﬂga KRB AT 1T1F -
R ZE—FF XA =B H 21,045,000 &
H%%EZE%%%%&%i% T—=ZF+—A
=t+—BHaTE-

= 143
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24 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the

24 BERRFE (&)
RE G B ARITEE R B8R R EITE

following expiry dates and exercise prices: BT :
Exercise Number of options Vested percentages
price BREZE EEEO
Expiry date TEE 2011 2010 201 2010
RS Brt —B8——% _T-TF ZB——F _T-FTF
‘000 ‘000
T4 T
Directors Ex
3 August 2014 —E-mFENA=H 0.682 220 400 100% 100%
Employees 3=
3 August 2014 —E-mFENA=H 0.682 - 3,120 100% 100%
28 April 2015 —hAFWMA=+N\H 1.331 110 - 100% -
2 June 2015 —ET-hFAXHAZH 1.145 1,045 — 29% —
Others Hit
3 August 2014 —ET-mFENA=H 0.682 330 300
1,705 3,820
The weighted average fair value of options granted during HEr—_E——F=A=+—BIEEXNM

the year ended 31 March 2011 determined using the binomial BREBREZNETHATFELFER =

option pricing model were approximately HK$0.3946 per
share and HK$0.3137 per share (2010: HK$0.1414 per share).
The significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$1.464 and HK$1.260 as at the grant dates (2010: HK$0.75),
exercise price as shown above, volatility of 52.8% and 53.3%
respectively (2010: 55%), expected life of options of five years,
expected dividend yield of 6% (2010: 7%) and annual risk-free
interest rate of 2.07% and 1.59% respectively (2010: 55%).
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on the historical volatility of the
Company's share price over a period of 4 years before the date
when the options were granted.

BAHEETEENETE 98503946
BT RER3BZVBT(ZE—ZF : K
014148 7))  BRAZEEZHABRNE
u% EI H;ﬁZﬁﬂﬁFTM 46475 7T &% 1.2607% 7T
ZE-FTF :0758m) * EXFITE
B - 1D F 185 552.8%K%53.3% (=& —
TF :55%) EHIBREFHAESF - EH
H& B E% (ZE—FF 7% RFE
BB FIE 5 FI2.07%E1.59% (ZF—F
¢-55%) BEEHREDRZEE
HMEMRE - DEARARENRLER
BABAMFERN s BLRIEFE -
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25 RESERVES

25 f#1E

Group
r5H
Share-  Available-
based  for-sale
Capital  compen- financial
Share reserve sation asset Exchange  Retained
premium (Note) ~ reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings
e
REE EARE ARGXA HBEE
(M) MeRE e ENRE REEN
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$ 000
TEr TEx  TEx  TEx  TER  TEx
At 1 April 2009 RZZTNFMA-F 54490 10,591 664 - 3097 164511 261243
Employee share option scheme: (& 8 B AR 212 -
Value of employee services ~ [EEMREZEE - - 1174 - - - 1174
Proceeds from shares issued /TP EERER BT M
upon exercise of options LT 5,331 - - - - - 5,331
Transfer of reserve upon IFERESEERE
exercise of options 1,298 - (1,298) - - - -
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - 56,505 56,505
Dividends paid Bk E - - = = - (17.897)  (17.897)
At 31 March 2010 R_T-TF
ZA=1+-H 61,119 10,591 540 - 30,987 203,119 306,356
Representing: RER:
Proposed dividend Bk s 15,811
Others Bt 187,308

203119
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25 RESERVES (Continued)

25 R

T NEN
PN
Share-
bhased
compen-
Share Contributed sation Retained
premium surplus serve earnings
BARR 3 32 44
RAEE HABH MeRE RKREER
(note (a))
(P E(a))
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TEL TAEL TAET TAET
At 1 April 2010 RZE-TF
A—H 61,119 10,591 540 - 30,987 203,119 306,356
Exchange difference arising /@SN BARAE
on translation of the FELEREZR
foreign subsidiaries - - - - 5329 - 5329
Fair value gain on available- AT L ERBEE
for-sale financial asset PANEEL 6 - - - 275 - - 275
Bonus issue of shares BATHIRR (K 5E23(b))
(Note 23(b)) (2,457) - - - (2,457)
Employee share option scheme: (& 2 B AR 213 -
Value of employee services EERBZEE - - 598 - - - 598
Proceeds from shares issued 1T EERIER T
upon exercise of options Rin 2 Fif5300R 3,782 - - - - - 3,782
Transfer of reserve upon T BRER
exercise of options EREE 943 - (943) - - - -
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 90,438 90,438
Dividends paid BERKE - - - - - (29531)  (29,531)
At 31 March 2011 R-2--%
=A=1-H 63,387 10,591 195 215 36,316 264,020 374,784
Representing: RER:
Proposed dividend Bk e 43514
Others Hit 220,506
264,020
Note: Bt s -
(a) The capital reserve of the Group comprises, among others, (a) AREBEAHEGBEE(HhaR)n=

ZEZ_FNARBAEESEAHAE AR
I R R BT E BREESEM
o R B B A B 2 IR AR SRR 1 )4 (B 4 R
A2 =% o

the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount
of the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries
acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to the
Group's reorganisation in September 2002.
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25 RESERVES (Continued)

25 f#E (&)

Company
VNG|
Share-
based
compen-
Share Contributed sation Retained
ET surplus serve earnings
MR XA
ROEE BARKR MeRE RKREEF
(note (a))
(Pt &x(a))
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
AT FET TET FEx TET
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFNA—A 54,490 64,872 664 16,765 136,791
Employee share option EEmBREE -
scheme:
Value of employee services EBER®G2EE - - 1,174 - 1,174
Proceeds from shares issued T B ER T
upon exercise of options B2 G A 5,331 - - - 5,331
Transfer of reserve upon TR E R
exercise of options BRRESB 1,298 - (1,298) - -
Profit for the year FREF - - - 19,679 19,679
Dividends paid 2R E - = = (17,897) (17,897)
At 31 March 2010 RZB—%F
ZA=1+—H 61,119 64,872 540 18,547 145,078
Representing: HER :
Proposed dividend BIRRE 15,811
Others Hity 2,736

18,547
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25 RESERVES (Continued)

25 R

T NEN
NN
Share-
bhased
compen-
Share Contributed sation Retained
premium surplus serve earnings
R X 4
ROEE SMARR MeRE RKREEA
(note (a))
(KtE(a)
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET TR TET TET TET
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-2F
MA—A 61,119 64,872 540 18,547 145,078
Bonus issue of shares BITAR (2,457) (2,457)
Employee share option scheme: B 8 BBk & -
Value of employee services EERK2EE - - 598 - 598
Proceeds from shares issued TEERERET
upon exercise of options Bth 2 Fri5 508 3,782 - - - 3,782
Transfer of reserve upon TR R
exercise of options BREE 943 - (943) - -
Profit for the year FREF - - - 59,885 59,885
Dividends paid BEIRRE - - - (29,537) (29,537)
At 31 March 2011 R=%-—-%
ZA=t+-H 63,387 64,872 195 48,895 177,349
Representing: HER :
Proposed dividend BIRRE 43,514
Others it 5,381
48,895
Note: Bt E -
(a) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the (a) BARBIEFTEITIRG 2 EE BT
nominal amount of the shares issued and the book value of BB AR EEETEEEmE Y =
the underlying net assets of subsidiaries acquired. 5 o
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed BEABRE—NLN\—FRQa0E ®A
surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the B Dk TR - HEY L,(Tﬂﬂ#

condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a FfR - Blfi B A BT IR K ,)Eﬁﬁ&t
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus BSEE DR > mi)ARA R B Fiskn
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its EE D REELXEZHFEHEE 5

liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of (IEBEZAEBERREAE

its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its BEITIRA KD R E 2 BF - BT
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium. BIEEEBOIE -
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26 REVENUE
The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, manufacture and sales of electronic products,
moulds and plastic products. Revenues recognised during the
year are as follows:

27

28

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

& &

BB EBEER R

Gl

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R IR MI5E

26 Wi

B2 RAEMT :

AGREIERSETED BAREBE
mif T K% - BUEEIHE X - TR

2011 2010
—E——-F —ZT-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TAET FTAT

Sales of goods BEYIHERR
— electronic products —BFEm 1,137,249 917,638
— moulds and plastic products —-REARBBER 53,809 42,228
1,191,058 959,866

OTHER INCOME

271 HEMl A

2011 2010
—E-—-F C—ZT-TF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FTAT FHET
Scrap sales BERLHE 491 447
Others Hh 225 350
716 797
OTHER GAINS 28 H#pugx

Fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments

Net realised gain on derivative
financial instruments

201
—E——fF

HKS’ 000
FTERT

RAVELABS MBEE
ZRFERE 57
TEEMIAZ ATEKES

490
TEERMTAZEH RS FH

1,060

2010
—E2-FF
HK$' 000
FHET

1,607
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29 EXPENSES BY NATURE 29 RUEBE D ZHAX

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and selling
expenses and general and administrative expenses are analysed

ATAHERAR  DEMEEERAR—K
RITRERBERZASAWMT :

as follows:

2011 2010
—E-—F5 —ZT-ZF
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FAET
(restated)
(&%)
Cost of inventories 78K 921,301 748,838
Depreciation of property, plant M WEREENE
and equipment
— owned assets -BEEE 11,792 13,084
— assets held under finance leases —URERAORBECEE - 76
Amortisation of land use rights T b AR B 135 132
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HENE BEERKREZ
plant and equipment (Yez) /518 (322) 295
Operating lease rental of premises BFsgEloEe 5,869 6,282
Net foreign currency exchange loss HNEE E5 1B F 58 (965) 1,243
Employee benefit expense (including BIRMNAXZ (BEESEH:E)
directors” emoluments) (Note 35) (PBf3E35) 104,142 82,439
Reversal of impairment of trade JE W B 5 BR SR B B [0
receivables (615) (938)
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving B REETERE
inventories (included in cost of sales) (B ANSHERKA) 1,641 -
Fair value gain on derivative financial MTEERIAZ A FEKS
instruments - (8)
Auditors’ remuneration % ELEN B & 1,985 1,887
Other expenses Hinf X 46,602 43,926
Total cost of sales, distribution and HEKAE nERHEEEHR
selling expenses and general and AE—BERTHRERERERE
administrative expenses 1,091,565 897,256
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30 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Interest income from:

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

= £ B B &

B A& R 2 7

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R IR MI5E

30 MEWARBE KA

2011
—_E——F

HK$’ 000
TER

KETHNET ZMBIA

2010
—E-FF
HK$' 000
FHEIT

— bank deposits —RITHER 1,181 458
— bonds investments —EHEKE 400 —
Finance income & WA 1,581 458
Interest on: LATIEB Z2F8
— bank borrowings wholly repayable - ARAEFARTBEEE
within five years ZIRITIEE (1,031) (651)
— finance lease liabilities —-@MERLEE - (1)
Finance costs BE AR (1,031) (652)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEWA S (BKA) F58 550 (194)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

31

(a) Bermuda and British Virgin Islands income tax
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016. The Company’s subsidiaries in the British Virgin
Islands are incorporated under the International Business
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are
exempted from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.

(b) Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits

for the year.

Frig BB <

(a) BREREBELHEESHEH
ARARHE T FREHERE
BIE - RARRABEXES 2B
NADBEEBRE ZHSBREEE
A At e EBE LRSS

5% -

(b) EERNEH

EBFERIBEANFE (LT R
EFIR165% (ZE—T4F  165%) 2

MEEE -
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31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Mainland Chinese enterprise income tax

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ("SESL"), Suga
Networks Equipment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“SNESL"), Pets
& Supplies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“PSSL"), Nodic-Matsumoto
Tooling and Plastic Injection (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. ("Nodic”)
and Precise Plastic Injection (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“PPISL")
are subsidiaries established in Mainland China. All the
Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
corporate income tax at 25% effective from 1 January
2008.

Macao taxation
P&S Macao Commercial Offshore Limited is a subsidiary
established in Macao and is exempted from Macao
Complementary Tax.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

Fri&®ife < (#)

(c)

(d)

Annual Report 2010/115 %

B EREH
FEEET(RIDEARAR (FESE
F1) - EERESEN ORI BRATF]
(MEEREET])  BEER RID
BRAB(MAEERD A -—1AK
BRETB(EMARRA (AN
ERETEECRINDERAR (BT
E ) TR BORRER L 2 KB A
A AEBERPBEAEZ BB L
ABE-TZENF—A—HEARK
ZREHAEEAER -

BP9 B
RERFBERXZRBEERAR SN
WP B AT - RBURFITS
I

BAEAKERMBZAEHMT

2011 2010
— B2 —T-FF
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
THER TAT
Current income tax: NEAFRS R -
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEN 8,113 6,594
— Income tax outside Hong Kong —BERINTIEH 3,952 2,205
— Qver-provision in prior years —BAFEHREERE (246) (1,802)
Deferred income tax relating to the EERBOERERABAZ
origination and reversal of BT RS (B aE22)
temporary differences (Note 22) 109 (289)
11,928 6,708
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31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 31 FEREX#E)
(d) Macao taxation (Continued) (d) BFBIIE &)
The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax KREBRTER RGN 2 Fr 55 8 A
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using ERNMTRRAE 7 IBREBERT
the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows: B =BE0T :
2011 2010
—B-—-F —ZT-TF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 2% A& A 102,366 63,213
Calculated at a taxation rate of 1£165% (ZF—ZFF : 16.5%)
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) MERFE 16,890 10,430
Effect of different income tax rates BERRINTEERAFEA
on income arising outside TRFEHREZFE
Hong Kong 1,152 477
Tax loss not recognised RERBEERE 142 567
Expenses not deductible for income NAHIFER 2RAX
tax purpose 483 200
Income not subject to income tax HABRETEH 2 WA (4,954) (2,615)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBRERE (246) (1.802)
Utilization of previously HRABTRBRNIEERE
unrecognized tax losses (1,539) (549)
Income tax expense FIEBiZ 11,928 6,708
There is no tax charge relating to components of other MEREL HEEtwE2EKABEES
comprehensive income. o
32 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY 32 RPEREFE AEMLER
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company ADAREREABMGGFEF L
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to 59,885,000/ 7T (=T — T4 : 19,679,000/8
the extent of a profit of approximately HK$59,885,000 (2010: L) Bt AR R R BHE ©

HK$19,679,000).
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(after taking into account the effect of the Bonus Issues as
stated in note 23(b)) during the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of

the Company (HK$' 000) (F#HT)

ERTEBBINEF IR

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (' 000)

(F 50

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

FREXZMN EI)

Annual Report 2010/115 %

33 SRER
(a) EZ&
BREXRBTIERRAREZFEA
B aFBRENDETLBR 2 NE
FHREGTE (T R HMFE23(b)) Aridt
ARBITIHE) -

2010
—ET-ZF

(restated)

(E51)

ARRIBER B AR RF

90,438 56,505
269,904 259,635
33.51 21.76

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares and adjusting for the Bonus Issue in September
2010 (as stated in note 23(b)). The Company has one
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares which is the
share options granted to employees. For the share options,
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average market price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the share options.

(b) #F
BREERMNIRERAEEBEESE
TRREEHR BN TRBERITEIN
LBBNEFAREIEE  UE—F
—ZFN R Z AT (MK EE23(0))
PrEg) MaA% - RARAE —BEEH
EEAR - BREBRR L ZBAE -
BRENS - BB VRAEN
RARTEBRECRBRZEEE
EXRFE > BFTARQAFEUAEAR
A FAMESE) BAZBRNE
B o KB A B 2 BB
REEBBREEITEM S EET 2D
FEL®-
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted (Continued)
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33 BRERN#)
(b) #5& (&)

2010
—ZE-FF
(restated)
(E7%)
Profit attributable to equity holders of ~ ZAN2A AIAX#EHF B A FE (L 4 Fl
the Company (HK$'000) (F#&x) 90,438 56,505
Weighted average number of ordinary & 3% 17 & @ A% hnkE 15 IR
shares in issue ("000) (FAR) 269,904 259,635
Adjustments for share options ('000)  EEAGHEFE (F15) 1,536 1,607
Weighted average number of ordinary SR ESERF| 2 @A
shares for diluted earnings INFEFHRRE (T %)
per share ("000) 271,440 261,242
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) ~ SAXEEZE | GBl) 33.32 21.63

34 DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend, paid, of HK5.0 cents
(2010: HK3.6 cents (restated for
the Bonus Issus as stated in

3 4 Hﬁ I%\

2011
—_E——F

2010
—E-ZF
HK$' 000
FHEIT

HK$’ 000
TR
B K H AR B B i A5 078 L

—T—TF 3681
(A Bt 5E23(b) By it 2 AT A% 3577

note 23 (b)) per ordinary share &) 13,542 9,518
Final dividend, proposed, of ¥R R HA IR B 5 AR T @ AR 8.0 1L

HK8.0 cents (2010: HK5.9 cents —ZE—TF : 598/l

(restated for the Bonus Issus as (B Bt 5E23(b) Py it 2 4T A% 3547

stated in note 23 (b)) per ordinary share mE%l) 21,757 15,811
Special dividend, proposed, of HK8.0 BORAT R IR B F R T A AR

cents (2010: Nil) per ordinary share BOBI(ZE—FF : &) 21,751 =

57,056 25,329

At a meeting held on 22 June 2011, the directors proposed
the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per share
and a special dividend of HK8.0 cents per share for the year
ended 31 March 2011. Such dividends are to be approved by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 8 August
2011. These proposed dividends are not reflected as a dividend
payable in the financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of distributable reserves in the year ending 31
March 2012.

R—ZE——FXA-+t-_HETZE
BL EEEEMEE_ZT——F=A
=+— B IEFEIRMN KR E F8.0/5(L
N RIRL S FR%8.081l - BEREKR BN =
E——FNANBZBRERAFRS HERK
B o BRI EW KRR RE R A
RS ERBRABE T ——F=
A=+—BLFEZI#SRFEHEDIK °
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 3B EIRIAFA(BEREEHE)
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS)

2011 2010
—E——-fF —ET-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Wages and salaries TERS® 92,449 72,268
Bonus TEAT 3,161 2,240
Staff welfare IR 5,322 5,021
Share-based compensation expenses PARR A9 32 1 Bl & B 2 598 1,174
Unutilised annual leave REDMER 100 74
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ~ E{K & KA — F 28 4 F st 2l 2,512 1,662
104,142 82,439
(a) Directors’ emoluments and senior management (a) EEMERSREE A S FH M
emoluments
The emoluments of every director for the year ended 31 HE-_T—F=A=1+—HILFE
March 2011 is set out below: EREBEZZMEHIN T ¢

Other emoluments
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme  Share-based Total

Fees benefits contributions compensation emoluments
HFER RIKER ROEAH

e He i 7| s HB#E X M & &5t

HKS' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

TR TR TR TiEn TiE#n

Dr. Ng Chi Ho RERET - 3,000 300 - 3,300
Mr. Ma Fung On BETELE - 1,320 66 - 1,386
Professor Wong Sook HREOYR

Leung, Joshua 240 - - 202 442
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, RFHILE

Steven 180 - - 597 m
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BAELE 180 - - - 180

Mr. Lee Kam Hung FHRELE 180 - - - 180
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments and senior management
emoluments (Continued)
The emoluments of every director for the year ended 31
March 2010 is set out below:

Fees

e

HK$' 000

AL

Dr. Ng Chi Ho REREL -

Mr. Ma Fung On BETRAE =
Mr. Wong Wai Lik, BERNEE

Lamson (Note 1) (P &E1) —
Professor Wong Sook "R HE

Leung, Joshua 240
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, RFEHESE

Steven 180
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRARLE

(Note 2) (Fi&r2) 180
Mr. Lee Kam Hung FRERE

(Note 3) (BzE3) 105

Note:

1 Mr. Wong Wai Lik, Lamson resigned as executive director
on 1 September 2009.

2. Mr. Chan Kit Wang was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 1 April 2009.

3. Mr. Lee Kam Hung was appointed as non-executive director
on 1 September 2009.

B R R R

3B BETRANAX(BREEENE) (@)

(a) EEMERSREBABHMH

NEIEEN
and other

benefits
HER
Hfth 12 7
HKS$' 000
FET

2,900
1,240

400

(%)
BE-_T-TF-A=1+-HILFE
BHREFZMEHIIMT -

QOther emoluments

Hitih &

Retirement

benefits

scheme  Share-based Total
contributions  compensation emoluments
RNE [ SRNE

ATEIf BB > Meas

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THET THET THET
290 325 3,515

62 42 1,344

20 = 420

= 57 297

= 42 222

= = 180

= = 105

—

BERNEER-_ZZAFAA—R
BERTES -

2. BRARKRERZTTNAFMA—H
EZERBIUFATES -

3. EFBREAER-_TTAFNLA—H
BERXERFUNTES -
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included two (2010: two) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2010: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and

Annual Report 2010/115 %

3B ETRMNAX (BREEME) (@)

(b) EEBREHFMAL
RAFEE  AEERERSHMAL
BEMEZ (T TF WA)ES
BEZHESER ElH T R - F
NENE#H=ZFZ(ZT—FF: =F&)
ATZBemT -

2011
—_E——F

2010

— T
HK$" 000
FHE T

HK$’ 000
FERT

EXFE AMREMEDA S

other benefits in kind 4,082 3,790
Contribution to retirement scheme RIREFIET B4 148 182
Share-based compensation expenses  LARR 10 2 1 Bl B % - 85

4,230 4,057
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FIA T EE -

W& #E
21,000,000 7T

Emolument bands

Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

1,000,0017% 7t £1,500,0007 7T 2 1
2,000,0017% 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 1 1

Number of individuals
A

2011 2010

—ET-ZF
HK$' 000
FHET

=
HKS’ 000
T
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 3 ETEINEX (BFREEME) &)

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(¢c) No emoluments were paid to the directors or the five (c) ARARRFEABBERNESEKAEES
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon FATXABE - ERWRSIE MBS
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office REMBREE R 2 RE BB
during the year. No directors or the five highest paid B-FR BEESFHAELERTA
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments ITHELRBRETAMNE -

during the year.

36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS b REEKELEZHRS
Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated from FRNRMELEEBMEERSHEREN
operations as follows: T
2011 2010
=B—-F _IZT-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FTAT
(restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year FREF 90,438 56,505
Adjustments for: AR
— Income tax expense —FEHAX 11,928 6,708
— Depreciation of property, - BERZENE
plant and equipment 11,792 13,160
— Amortisation of land use rights — o 3 {5 PR A 8E 135 132
— (Gain)/loss on disposals of property, —HEYE  BEERZE
plant and equipment 2 (W) /B8 (322) 295
— Finance income —REWA (1,581) (458)
— Finance cost — BB KA 1,031 652
— Share-based compensation expenses — B& 1015 B B A S 598 1,174
— Fair value gain on financial assets at -BATFELEABR T (57) -
fair value through profit or loss BEzANFEKZE
— Fair value gain on derivative —-PTEEMI A ATEKRS
financial instruments (490) (8)
Changes in working capital: HEESEE
— Inventories -EE (32,172) 2,451
— Trade and other receivables -RBWREZERR
H fth & Y R IR (16,414) (34,146)
— Amount due from a jointly -~ —AEREFEERIEA
controlled entity (2,030) 3,519
— Trade and other payables -ENEZERR
Hofth & A~ FRIR 39,526 45,986

Cash generated from operations REXBEEZRE 102,382 95,970
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36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

Net book value (Note 6)
Gain/(loss) on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

36 REXKELECRE (£)
HEYE BERRBZFAEXELE

2011 2010

—EF——F —T-FF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FERT FHETT

AR F(E (P9 5E6) 5 369
HEME  BERZE

ZWa (E5i8) 322 (295)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment Z B RIB

327 74

37 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
As at 31 March 2011, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$389,112,000 (2010: HK$432,304,000).
The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2011
amounted to HK$67,451,000 (2010: HK$39,007,000).

38 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At 31 March 2011, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments in respect of rented premises under
noncancellable operating leases as follows:

37 MEER
R_E——F=ZRB=+—H'&XQH7
REMBARAZRITEERHESG HAL
389,112,000/ 7T (=& —Z 4 : 432,304,000
BL)ZER RZE——F=A=+—
H ZEWBRARECHBEERES
67,451,000/%8 7t (ZZ —= 4 : 39,007,000/%
JT) °

38 KEHNAIE
R-E——F=A=+—0 A£E#HA
EYERBTUHECLEHORKERNZ
SIEASLEWT :

Group
AEE
2011 2010
— 2 —ZT-ZF
HKS$' 000 HK$" 000
FTHER FAET
Not later than one year —F RN 2,324 5,130
Later than one year and not later —FRERFA
than five years - 1,760
2,324 6,890
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39 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% to 10% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes
approximately 7% to 12% of the basic salaries of its employees,
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension abligations payable to retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Macao, the Group
has arranged its Macao employees to join the government
provident fund scheme (the “Macao Scheme”). The Group and
its employees makes monthly contributions of MOP30 and
MOP15, respectively, per month to each employee to the Macao
Scheme, and had no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the monthly
contributions.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of the
Group’s contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes
were approximately HK$2,512,000 (2010: HK$1,662,000).

Bt B AR M 5t

39 EERKEF

REBEAERBEELHLERFEA
B ([REEFE]) - RBEEFET
THEERNTE  ABUETAEE - B
BESAE - AEBEHEEEESH KRR
HERES ARG ARZTEMHK  ©8
AREBRAZE%ZET10% o — &
REBABELE-—SNREE-

AEBIRRPBRER N SABIZRE
REE R BIKRE 2 B B MBI Z & BRI
SR - AREZEREEEATENINE
12% 85 - BREREFRN - TEER A
BREHEAREFNZEMBEL - BRE
PRAFFEEEMERNEENEN 22
ARRRE

RIRRFIZRAIRAG - AEEEZHE
BFREE2NBRE B (DRPIF
2 -AEENEREGANEBREED
Bll [A) 2 P 5t 8 L R30I PI ’E KR 15)RFT ¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
As at 31 March 2011, 40.48% of the total issued shares of
the Company is owned by Superior View Inc., a company
incorporated in BVI. 16.06% of the total issued shares of the
Company is owned by Billion Linkage Limited, a company
incorporated in BVI. The ultimate controlling party of the Group
is Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Ms. Lee Wai Fun.

(a) Transaction with related parties
Except as otherwise stated, during the year, the Group has
the following related party transactions:

Sales of electronic products to

) — ] #k Rl 422 5 B 8
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40 BREALIRS
R-_T——F=A=+—8 ARAI2
BEITRR 7 4858 ,2.40.48% T R 11 22 8 i 2 B¥
B A S 2 A A Superior View Inc. A °
RRBIE TR B 58.216.06% /5 R E R
B B Z B & it A 32 2 22 FBillion Linkage
Limited# 8 - AR EHKERATRRE
SBLIRFEF XL -

(a) HEBEEALTRS
BREBERMIN  AEBRFRNEHET
THEBEALTRS :

2011
—_E——F
HK$' 000
TERT

2010
—E-ZTF

HK$" 000
TAET

a jointly controlled entity H % EE%E an 254,107 268,971
Management fee received from B — R A RZEH EBKE

a jointly controlled entity Z fi% 180 180
Management fee paid to m—AEREGEEZ N

a jointly controlled entity LEBRE 101 146

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions
were carried out in the normal course of the Group's
business and conducted at terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.

EERR LARFNAEEAEEKSB
2P AR T B AR E 2 IRFRAETT
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 40 EBEALIRS (B
(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEE RN
Remuneration of key personnel management, including FTEEREBABZFMBEREENARA
amount paid to the Company’s directors and certain of AEERETREHFEEZZE R
the highest paid employee, as disclosed in Note 35, is as BizE35H ) - HIWAT
follows:
2011 2010
—B-—-F —ZT-ZTF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TART FAET
Salaries and other short-term FehEMEHEERA
employee benefits 9,950 9,400
Post-employment benefits BERE 2R A 571 563
Share-based compensation expenses  BARX 17 % < Bl & BA % - 523
10,521 10,486
(c) Year-end balances with related parties (c) BEEMEALZFRER

2011 2010
—2——% -T-%%F

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR TAT

Amount due from a jointly controlled  FEUR — & 2[R 4E I & 8& 7118
entity 26,112 24,082

The terms of balances with related parties are disclosed in HEMEALTZESTH  RIFEN
Note 11. BE -
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Five Year Financial Summary
HFPBEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BiZ=F——F=A=+—HLFE

ARG R ENREE 2 R0 EE
EHAEESHIINT -

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets
and liahilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out

ht
X
Sy
o>
s

below:

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=1t-HLFE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“TT+FE —TTENE —TTNF —T-TF CZE——-F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
T AT AT TEL TER
Consolidated results S
Revenue Wz 696,346 707,711 812,034 959,866 1,191,058
Operating profit mER R 20,681 24,232 28,553 63,407 101,816
Profit before income tax BR T T8 A0 A 15,020 21,627 28,198 63,213 102,366
Income tax expense FETRAX (2,967) (940) (3,274) (6,708) (11,928)
Profit attributable to the AREBEREA
equity holders of FE 16 7l
the Company 12,053 20,687 24,924 56,505 90,438

As at 31 March

R=A=t-8
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“FRLF —FTE\F —FENF -F-TF -¥-—-F

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

TET TET TET TEL TER
Consolidated assets and liabilities R EER A& (restated)

(E51)
Property, plant and equipment ERS N 78,028 65,195 62,761 105,892 113,367
Land use rights T 4,443 4,458 4,399 4,267 4,225
Goodwill GES 1,059 1,059 1,059 1,059 1,059
Interest in an associate R—EBENE 2 ER = = = = -
Available-for-sale financial asset [t EBM K EE - - - = 4,150
Financial assets at fair value BERAFEZAERZZ
through profit or loss NBEE - - - - 11,481

Bonds investments BHEKE - - - = 14,01
Deferred income tax assets ELEMEREE 3,063 3,106 2,179 2,301 1,888
Current assets MBEE 295,788 327,571 329,723 402,758 487,590
Current liabilities mEEE (139,638) (122,589) (109,412) (156,927) (200,039)
Net current assets MEBEEFE 156,150 204,982 220,311 245,831 287,551
Total assets less current liabilities ZELER TS EE 242,743 278,800 290,709 359,350 437,732
Long term borrowings RHBEE - (10,909) (3,636) (26,163) (33,499)
Finance lease liabilities MEREERE (123) (42) = = -
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEMERAasE (3,902) (2,853) (2,746) (2,579) (2,275)
Total equity ExeE 238,718 264,99 284,327 330,608 401,958
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